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VISION

We at Worldcall are committed to achieving
dynamic growth and service excellence by being at
the cutting edge of technological innovation. We
strive to consistently meet and surpass customers',
employees' and stake-holders' expectations by
offering state-of-the-art telecom solutions with
national & international footprints. We feel pride in
making efforts to position Worldcall and Pakistan in
the forefront of international arena.

MISSI@NESIZAERENT

In the telecom market of Pakistan, Worldcall to have an over-
whelming impact on the basis of following benchmarks:

o Create new standards of product offering in basic and value
added telephony by being more cost effective, easily
accessible and dependable. Thus ensuring real value for
money to all segments of market.

o Be a leader within indigenous operators in terms of market
share, gross revenues and ARPU within five years and
maintain the same positioning thereafter.

o Achieve utmost customer satisfaction by setting up high
standards of technical quality and service delivery.

Ensuring the most profitable and sustainable patterns of ROI (Return
on Investment) for the stake-holders.

B 02 HALF YEARLY REPORT 2019




B @ WorldcCall
WORLD
CALL

Contents

Page Four
Company Information
Page Six
Directors’ Review Report
Page Nine
WAL
Page Ten

Independent Auditor’s Review Report to the Members
of WordCall Telecom Limited on Review of Interim
Financial Statements

Page Eleven
Condensed interim Standalone Financial Statements
Page Thirty Eight

Independent Auditor’s Review Report to the Members
of WordCall Telecom Limited on Review of Consolidated
Interim Financial Statements

Page Thirty Nine

Condensed interim Consolidated Financial Statements

B o HALF YEARLY REPORT 2019




COMPANY INFORMATION

Chairman
Chief Executive Officer

Board of Directors

Chief Financial Officer

Executive Committee

Audit Committee

Human Resource &
Remuneration Committee

Chief Internal Auditor
Company Secretary

Auditors

Legal Advisers

Dr. Syed Salman Ali Shah
Mr. Babar Ali Syed

Dr. Syed Salman Ali Shah (Chairman)
Mr. Babar Ali Syed

Mr. Muhammad Murtaza Raza

Mr. Muhammad Azhar Saeed

Mr. Faisal Ahmed

Mr. Mansoor Ali

Mr. Mohammad Nadeem

Mr.Muhammad Azhar Saeed, FCA

Dr. Syed Salman Ali Shah (Chairman)
Mr. Babar Ali Syed (Member)

Mr. Muhammad Murtaza Raza (Member)
Mr. Muhammad Azhar Saeed (Member)

Mr. Faisal Ahmed (Chairman)

Mr. Muhammad Murtaza Raza (Member)
Mr. Mansoor Ali (Member)

Mr. Ansar lgbal Chauhan (Secretary)

Mr. Mansoor Ali (Chairman)

Mr. Babar Ali Syed (Member)

Mr. Muhammad Murtaza Raza (Member)
Mr. Muhammad Azhar Saeed (Member)
Mr. Faisal Ahmed (Member)

Mr. Ansar lgbal Chauhan
Mr. Mueen Taugir, ACA
Horwath Hussain Chaudhury& Co.

Chartered Accountants

Mfs Miankot& Co.
Barristers, Advocates &
Corporate Legal Consultant

B 04 HALF YEARLY REPORT 2019




Bankers

Allied Bank Limited

Askari Bank Limited

Bank Al Habib Limited

Faysal Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
JS Bank Limited

Banklslami Pakistan Limited

MCB Bank Limited

National Bank of Pakistan

Pak Oman Investment Co. Limited
Soneri Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited
Summit Bank Limited

Telenor Microfinance Bank Limited
The Bank of Punjab

United Bank Limited

Waseela Microfinance Bank Limited

Registrar and Shares Transfer Office THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited

1st Floor, 40-C, Block-6, PE.C.H.S.,
Karachi-75400.
Tel: (021) 111-000-322

Registered Office/Head Office Plot No. 1566/124,

Webpage

n -

Main Walton Road,
Lahore, Pakistan
Tel:(+92 42) 36671191-94
Fax: (+92 42) 36671197

www.worldcall.com.pk
www.worldcall.net.pk

HALF YEARLY REPORT 2019




B @ WorldcCall
WORLD
CALL

DIRECTORS’ REVIEW REPORT

The Board of Directors of Worldcall Telecom Limited (“Worldcall” or the “Company”) is pleased to
present its review report along with condensed interim standalone and consolidated financial
information for the half year ended June 30, 2019.

Economic Overview

Pakistan's economy is showing strong signs of rising growth and price stability. The near term
outlook for economic growth is broadly favorable supported by improved power supply, investment
relating to the China Pakistan Economic Corridor (CPEC), strong consumption growth and ongoing
recovery inagriculture.

Pakistan and China are executing Cross-border Fiber optic projects (Khunjerab — Rawalpindi),
820km long cable, which is in the implementation phase. The project will surely support IT
development in the northern parts of the country besides connecting the Transit Europe-Asia
Terrestrial Cable Network with Pakistan. A pilot project of Digital Television Multiband Broadcast
(DTMB) has also been completed under CPEC.

Financial Overview

Standalone Financial Statements

Summary of financial results for the half year ended June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Half Year Half Year
Particulars June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018
Rs. in million

Revenue-net 2,269 2,291
Direct Cost (excluding depreciation and Amortization) (1,215) (1,314)
Other Income 404 695
EBITDA 1,069 1,292
Depreciation and Amortization (646) (520)
Finance Cost (250) (115)
Profit/(Loss) after tax 194 640

During the period under review, the Company closed its financial results reportingRs194 million as
profit after tax. Thecompany's revenue remained almost the same fluctuating by only 1% as
compared to half year ended June 30, 2018 withLDI (Rs993 million) and the Broadband businesses
(Rs. 1,260 million) being the major contributors to the topline.Primary reasons for profit erosion are
the decrease in other income and increase in finance cost. Otherincome has reduced (291 million)
since major liabilities' write backs were done in the financial year 2018 whilst the finance cost has
risen sharply because of the upward shifts in KIBOR rate.
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Condensed interim consolidated financial statements comprise the financial results of WorldCall
Telecom Limited (Parent Company) consolidated with Route 1 Digital (Private) Limited (Subsidiary
Company). Route 1 Digital is a private limited Company incorporated in Pakistan on December 21,
2016 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). The primary
business is to carry out the business of all transport services, sharing motor vehicle transportation
with another or others, and consultancy in the field of information technology, software
development and all activities ancillary thereto. The subsidiary is domiciled in Pakistan and its
registered office is situated at 2nd Floor, 300 Y Block, Phase-Ill, Defence Housing Authority, Lahore
Cantt. Its principal place of business is situated at 20, Tariq Block, New Garden Town, Lahore. The
Group acquired this subsidiary during the year ended December 31, 2018 for which control was
obtained on April 20,2018.

Earnings per Share

The earnings per share of the Company on a consolidated as well as on standalone basis is Rupees
0.11 pershare.

Future Outlook

The targets have been broken down into quantitative objectives with emphasis on productive
utilization of dormant assets, enhanced quality service while monetizing associated offerings. The
Company is sweating the assets and with the stability achieved, is targeting aggressive growth in
the upcoming quarters. Till date, for the Broadband segment, over 1.2 million subscribers have
come into the company's network; Contracts with 2 leading global vendors for supply of Digital
boxes are in place and negotiations with 2 potential DTH License holders are being held to provide
end to end Direct to Home (DTH) solution which would start another era of digitalization. Further we
are well placed to launch Fiber to the Home (FTTH) as target areas along with vendors have been
finalized. Pilot testing phase has been completed in the desired areas and the company has
received a promising response. Moreover, the subscribers through loop holders would also be
roped infor FTTH service.

Company's staff and customers

We whole heartedly put on record here our appreciation and gratitude to our all staff members for
their efforts and hard work especially in recent times of stress and pressure. We further express
gratitude towards our loyal customer for their continued support and trust in our services.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Lahore, Pakistan Babar Ali Syed
August 31, 2019 Chief Executive Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WORLDCALL
TELECOM LIMITED ON REVIEW OF INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed interim statement of financial position of
WorldCall Telecom Limited as at June 30, 2019 and the related condensed interim statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, condensed interim statement of changes in equity,
and condensed interim statement of cash flows, and notes to the financial statements for the six-
month period then ended (here-in-after referred to as the “interim financial statements”).
Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of this interim financial statements
in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim
financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on these financial statements
based on our review. The figures included in the condensed interim statement of profit or loss and
condensed interim statement of comprehensive income for the quarters ended June 30, 2018 and
June 30, 2019 have not been reviewed, as we are required to review only the cumulative figures for
halfyear ended June 30, 2019.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements
2410, “Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”.
A review of interim financial statements consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons
responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review
procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that
we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly,
we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying interim financial statements are not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 2.7 to the condensed interim financial statements (un-audited), which
indicates that the Company has accumulated losses of Rs. 13,051.39 million and its current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 5,495.46 million. These conditions, alongwith others set
forth in note14 to the condensed interim financial statements (un-audited), indicate the existence of
a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report in Amin Ali.

Heathes Gt

LAHORE HORWATH HUSSAIN CHAUDHURY & CO.
Dated: 31 August 2019 Chartered Accountants
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CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2019

June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
Un-audited Audited
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES Note ---=------(Rupees in '000)-----------

Authorized share capital:
1,500,000,000 (December 31, 2018: 1,500,000,000) ordinary shares of
Rs. 10 each 5 15,000,000 15,000,000
500,000 (December 31, 2018: 500,000) preference shares of USD 100 each

(USD 50,000,000 equivalent to Rs. 6,000,000,000) 5 6,000,000 6,000,000
Ordinary share capital 6 10,835,944 10,835,944
Preference share capital 7 2,585,646 2,585,646
Dividend on preference shares 8 949,662 949,662
Capital reserves 597,467 606,776
Accumulated loss (13,051,393) (13,162,382)
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 1,351,683 1,466,342

3,269,009 3,281,988
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Term finance certificates 9 1,572,122 1,583,763
Long term financing 10 97,401 13,893
Sponsor's loan 1" 1,395,916 1,255,931
License fee payable 1,021,500 1,021,500
Post employment benefits 272,753 241,020
Long term deposit - 93,580
Lease liabilities 12 196,024 -
4,555,716 4,209,687
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 6,428,327 6,984,430
Unearned revenue 92,343 73,903
Accrued mark up 77,807 122,184
Current portion of non-current liabilities 375,705 164,740
Short term borrowings 13 768,855 701,558
Unclaimed dividend 1,807 1,807
Provision for taxation - net 349,075 276,322
8,093,919 8,324,944
Conti ies and Cc i 14 - -
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 15,918,644 15,816,619
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 15 8,321,740 8,276,110
Intangible assets 2,111,634 2,306,651
Investment properties 50,210 50,210
Long term investment 16 50,000 50,000
Long term trade receivable 360,882 54,578
Deferred taxation 2,384,624 2,281,289
Long term deposits 41,097 46,677
CURRENT ASSETS 13,320,187 13,065,515
Stores and spares 51,683 60,661
Stock-in-trade 204,777 204,777
Trade debts 17 1,462,335 1,674,557
Loans and advances 263,325 203,356
Deposits and prepayments 488,061 473,500
Short term investments 28,806 38,115
Other receivables 90,412 88,880
Cash and bank balances 9,058 7,258
2,598,457 2,751,104
TOTAL ASSETS 15,918,644 15,816,619

The annexed notes from 1 to 25 form an integral part of these condensed interim financial statements.

.

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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CONDENSED INTERIM PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE QUARTER AND HALF YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Half year ended June 30, Quarter ended June 30,
2019 I 2018 2019 1 2018
Note mmmemenemeneneneeeeeeemao--- (RUpeeS in '000)

Revenue 18 2,268,934 2,290,709 1,243,647 1,581,190
Direct costs excluding depreciation

and amortization (1,214,986) (1,313,780) (596,109) (807,407)
Operating costs (388,876) (379,675) (229,066) (192,763)
Other income - net 19 403,710 694,836 206,556 263,014
Profit before Interest, Taxation, 1,068,782 1,292,090 625,028 844,034

Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization (646,255) (519,726) (332,751) (260,266)
Finance cost (249,502) (114,825) (163,150) (64,265)
Profit before Taxation 173,025 657,539 129,127 519,503
Taxation 20,852 (17,709) (55,621) 5,756
Net Profit for the Period 193,877 639,830 73,506 525,259
Earnings per share - basic (Rupees) 0.11 0.09 0.04 0.20
Earnings per share - diluted (Rupees) 0.07 0.09 0.03 0.10

The annexed notes from 1 to 25 form an integral part of these condensed interim financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
B 12 HALF YEARLY REPORT 2019




B @ WorldcCall
WORLD
CALL

CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE QUARTER AND HALF YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Half year ended June 30, Quarter ended June 30,
2019 [[ 2018 2019 [[ 2018
-------------------------------- (Rupees in '000)---------------rmsmsmmememeeeeee

Net Profit for the Period 193,877 639,830 73,506 525,259

Other comprehensive income - net of tax:

Item that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss:

- Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value

through other comprehensive income (9,309) (1,924) (10,608) (9,569)
Other Comprehensive Loss - net of tax (9,309) (1,924) (10,608) (9,569)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period - net of tax 184,568 637,906 62,898 515,690

The annexed notes from 1 to 25 form an integral part of these condensed interim financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT CASH FLOWS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

| Half Year Ended June 30, |
2019 2018
(Un-audited) (Un-audited)
Note  ---------—---——-(Rupees in '000)--------------
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 20 363,089 (149,868)
Decrease / (Increase) in non-current assets:
- Long term loans - 460
- Long term trade receivables (311,240) 15,266
- Long term deposits 5,580 (716)
(305,660) 15,010
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 57,429 (134,858)
Post employment benefits paid (546) (8,927)
Finance cost paid (43,246) (9,566)
Income tax paid (16,491) (20,878)
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (2,854) (174,229)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (19,021) (40,176)
Investment in subsidiary - (5,659)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,860 70,858
Net Cash (Used in) / Generated from Investing Activities (17,161) 25,023
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of term finance certificates (30,000) -
Repayment of long term financing (13,893) (63,257)
Sponsor's loan - 300,000
Short term borrowings - net 96,536 2,502
Repayment of lease liability (30,828) -
Net Cash Generated from Financing Activities 21,815 239,245
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,800 90,039
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 7,258 22,220
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Period 9,058 112,259

The annexed notes from 1 to 25 form an integral part of these condensed interim financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
B 14 HALF YEARLY REPORT 2019




WorldcCall

WORLD
CALL

1991JJ0 [e1dueuld JB1YD 103103110 199140 9AIINDAXT JOIYD

o
~ -
SIUBLLSJE)S [BIDUBUL LULIBJUI PASUSPUOO 858U} JO Med [eiBajul Ue WLO) GZ O} | WO S8J0U Paxauue ay ] o
600'692°€ (€68°150°€ 1) €89'15E'L 29v'265 055689 €80°9€) 299'6v6 9v9'585°2 ¥¥6'GE8°0 1 6102 ‘0€ aunr je se aouejeg =
(292'9) - (292'9) - - - - - - sejel xey ul 8BueyD 4o 108y o
- : : . . . . . . siosse po o uonenene: o
268204 (z68'201) o snidins uo pouad sy} 10} UOHEZILOWE / UoNEIBIdap [BlUBWAIOU| W
895'v81 £118°€61 - (B0€'6) - (60€°6) - - - Xe] JO 18U - pouad 8y} J0} 8WooUI BAISUBYBIdWIOD [ejoL o
(60€°6) - - (60€°6) - (60€°6) - - - Xe1 40 18U - pouad 8y 1o} SSO| aAISUBYRIAWOD JBUI0 >
L18'€61 £18'€61 - - - - - - - pouiad ay) 1o} woud 1N I
£02'160'c (z91'ese'el) eve'99r'L 922'909 055'e€9 (v22'92) 299'6v6 9v9's8s'e 6'SE80L pajejsal se 8102 ‘L€ Jequieda( Je se sduejeg M
(82°061) (582°061) - - - - - - - 6 Sl Jo uondope Jo 10843 >
886'182'c (ese'z9L'el) 2re'99Y' L 922'909 05S'e€9 (v22'92) 299'6v6 9v9'585'2 6'SE8'0L papodas Aisnojnead se gLz ‘LE Jaquiedaq je se sduejeg [T
- (s29'6L1) - 90694 90694 - (oze'8k1) (0s6'€9%) 680'StL Aunba ur Ajjoeiip paziubooel ‘SIBUMO UM SUOHOBSURI} [B10) N_
- (£69°05) - - - - £69'05 - - pouad au) 1o} saIeys aoussajeid UO PUSPIAIQ T
(ev1'v62'S) - - - - - - - (ev1v62'S) saleys AJeUIpIO JO 80UENSS! U JUN0DSI
£r1L'v62'S - - (920'z1L1) (920°21L) - (£90'691) (0g6'€9p) 2€2'680'9 UOBIBL) PUBPIAIP PUE SBIBYS 80UaIajeid JO UOISIEAUOD
- (286'821) - 286'8C) 286'821 - - - - aA1asal Uone|SURl) aBueyOoXg
8LY'0k - 8LY'0k - - - - - - sejes xey ul abueyo Jo 10843
B €12'v8 (€20v8) ~ B ~ ~ . : S1aSSE pax| o UoHEN[eAal
o snidins uo poued ay) J0} UOHEZILIOWE / UONEIBIdaP [BlUBWAIOU|
LLp'LSL (050'681+) £8€'596 (zz6'81) - (ce6'81) - - - Xe} J0 18U - pouad 8y} Joj BWooU| BAISUBYRIAWOD [e10L
9YE'056 G88'E €8€'G96 (2z6'8h) - (cz6'81) - - - Xe} J0 18U - pouad 8y} 1o} SWooul sAISUSYLIdWoo JBUI0
(5e6°261) (5e6°261) - - - - - - - pouad au 10} S50] 18N
6517152 (oev'8.8'21) 71E'GLS 26.'809 79919 (258°2) 2£0'890°L 965'670'E 5S8°060°0L 8102 ‘0€ aunr je se souejeg
- (618'1€S) - 508'v2E S08'v2E - SYE'Z91L (0v9'001) 60€°0V 1 Aunbe ut Aoeu1p pazIuBOoeI ‘SIBUMO LM SUOHOBSUEI [E10L
- (rroz6h - - - - 11026k - - pouad 8y} 10} saseys 8ouaiajeid UO PUSPING
(125'899) - - - - - - - (125'899) seJeys AJeulpIo JO 80UBNSS! UO JUNOJSIQ
125'899 - - (€00°'01) (€00°04) - (999'62) (ov9'001) 0£8'808 UoaJaY} PUSPINP PUE SaIBYS 80UBIBJeId JO UOISIEAUOD
- (808'vEE) - 808'vEE 808'vEE - - - - aniesal uone|sues) 8bueyOXg
05601 - 0S6°0L - - - - - - sejel xe) Ul aBuey J0 10843
R . . - _ - R R R S19SSE paxi) Jo uonen|ens!
s8sor (eee'or) uo snjdins uo pouad ay) 10} UOHEZILOWE / UONEIaIdaP [BlUBWAIOU|
906°2€9 0€8'6€9 - (¥26't) - (r26't) - - - X} JO 18U - pouad 8y} 0} BWOdUI BAISUSYSIAWOD [E10]
(v26°L) - - (r26'1) - (r26°1) - - - e} J0 18U - pouad 8y} 1o} SSO| aAISUBYRIAWIOD JBUI0
0£8'689 0£8'6£9 - - - - - - - pouad auy Joj yoid 10N
£08'598'L (9zg'220°€1) 6v2'509 116'582 6€8'162 (826°S) 289'006 9€2'054'e 9v5'056'6 2102 ‘L€ 12quiaoaq je se soueleg
(000, ut seedny) - - - - _...14
aniesey
saniasay uonersuziL aniasay
(sso1 S1assy paxid fende fejor 5 oneAsed | seseys soussajeid |endes lendeo
leloL pajejnwnaay) J0 uonen|EASH obueyox3 o pus S1BUS BOUSIEIOL o184 Areipa ssenoaned
aAJasaY anuanay uo snjding P a us 4o4d us 'PI0
saniasay |eyded

6102 ‘0€ INNM A3AN3 HVIA 41VH IHL HO4
(@3Lianv-Nn) ALIND3 NI SIONVHO 40 LNIWILVLS WIHILNI dISNIANOD




B @ WorldcCall
WORLD
CALL

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2019

Note 1

The Company and its Operations

Note 2

Worldcall Telecom Limited (‘the Company") is a public limited Company incorporated in Pakistan on March 15, 2001 under
the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). Its shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock
Exchange. The Company commenced its operations on December 01, 2004 and is engaged in providing Wireless Local Loop
("WLL") and Long Distance & International ("LDI") services in Pakistan; re-broadcasting international/national satellite/terrestrial
wireless and cable television and radio signals; interactive communication and to establish, maintain and operate the licensed
telephony services. The Company has been licensed by Pakistan Telecommunication Authority ('PTA") and Pakistan
Electronic Media Regulatory Authority (‘PEMRA") for these purposes. The Company is domiciled in Pakistan and its registered
office and principal place of business is situated at Plot # 1566/124, Main Walton Road, Lahore Cantt.

Worldcall Services (Pvt.) Limited (the "Parent Company"), incorporated in Pakistan, owns 27.79% (2018: 27.79%) ordinary
shares of the Company. Aggregate holding of Worldcall Services (Private) Limited through other associates is 45.81% (2018:
53.27%)

Basis of Preparation

2.1

22

23

24

25

2.6

These condensed interim financial statements are the separate condensed financial statements of the Company in which
investment in subsidiary is stated at cost. Condensed consolidated interim financial statements are prepared separately.

These condensed interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan for interim financial reporting comprise of:

- International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34, Interim Financial Reporting, issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of IAS 34, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

These condensed interim financial statements are unaudited.

These condensed interim financial statements (un-audited) do not include all of the information required for annual financial
statements and should be read in conjunction with the annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018.
Selected explanatory notes are included to explain events and transactions that are significant to understanding of the
changes in the Company's financial statements since the last financial statements.

These condensed interim financial statements (un-audited) should be read in conjunction with annual audited financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2018. Comparative statement of financial position is extracted from annual
audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 whereas comparative statement of profit or loss,
comparative statement of comprehensive income, comparative statement of changes in equity and comparative statement of
cash flows are extracted from unaudited condensed interim financial statements for the half year ended June 30, 2018.

These condensed interim (un-audited) financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional
and presentational currency. All the figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees, unless otherwise stated.

B 16 HALF YEARLY REPORT 2019




B @ WorldcCall
WORLD
CALL

2.7 Going concern assumption

The Company has earned a profit after taxation of Rs. 193.88 million during the period ended June 30, 2019 (June 30, 2018:
profit after taxation of Rs. 639.83 million) which includes the impact of write back of provisions and unclaimed liabilities for Rs.
374.52 million (June 30, 2018: Rs. 559.43 million). As at June 30, 2019, the accumulated loss of the Company stands at Rs.
13,051.39 million (December 31, 2018: Rs. 13,162.38 million) and its current liabilities exceed its current assets by Rs.
5,495.46 million (December 31, 2018: Rs. 5,573.84 million). These conditions, along with the factors discussed in note 14,
indicate the existence of material uncertainties that cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern and therefore, it may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

The Company's management has carried out an assessment of going concern status of the Company and believes that
preparation of these financial statements on going concern assumption is appropriate. The management has placed reliance
on the following factors:

2.7.1  Net Liabilities Position - Risk Mitigation

As mentioned above, there is a net current liability position of approximately Rs. 5.495 billion as on the reporting date, which
has the following major components:

Description Note Rs in million
Short term Borrowings (Principal+Markup) 2711 817
Pakistan Telecommunication Authority (PTA) 2712 2,312
Claims of Parties Challenged 2713 885
Continuing Business Partners 2714 704
Provision for taxation 2715 349
5,067

The management believes that certain balances included in the above amounts do not represent immediately payable
liabilities as detailed below:

2.7.1.1 The Company has been successful in obtaining renewals of its short term financing facilities from all major banks except two
facilities and markup servicing is also being improved. Moreover, short term borrowings include funds obtained from sponsors
| related parties to the tune of Rs. 326.64 million.

2.7.1.2 Liabilities towards PTA stand at approximately Rs. 2.3 billion which are not immediately payable owing to non-fulfillment of
certain conditions relating to the demand of such amounts. These conditions relate to the industry circumstances and Court
Orders.

2.7.1.3 This amount represents the amounts owed to certain parties whose claims have been challenged by the Company in various

judicial forums for the breach and non-performance of their contractual obligations. Based on the merits of Company’s
position, the management believes that such amounts may not be immediately payable under the circumstances.

2.7.1.4 This represents routine trade credits extended by regular parties and these balances are of revolving nature. Thus, no
immediate net cash outlay would be required.

2.7.1.5 The Company does not anticipate cash outlays on account of Provision for Taxation, since it has sufficient brought forward
losses.

2.7.2  Continued Parent Company Support

The Company’s majority shareholder, Worldcall Services (Private) Limited (WSL) has given assurance to provide continued
cash flow support to the Company through its letter to the Company’s Board of Directors.
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Note 3

Significant Accounting Policies

The Company's accounting and financial risk management policies and methods of computation adopted in the preparation of these
condensed interim (un-audited) financial statements are the same as those applied in the preparation of preceding annual financial
statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2018 except for the adoption of new and amended standards as set out

below:

3.1

3141

3.1.1.41

Initial lication of ds, di or interpretati to existi dards

There has been no financial effect of the change in accounting policy on the prior period financial statements except for
certain reclassifications in the corresponding period.

The following amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable to the Company's condensed
interim financial statements:

Standards, d and interpretations to approved accounting and reporting standards that are effective in the
current period

Certain standards, amendments and interpretations to approved accounting and reporting standards are effective for
accounting periods beginning on January 1, 2019, but are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on
the Company's condensed interim financial statements and are, therefore, not detailed in these condensed interim financial
statements.

The following standards, amendments and interpretations to approved accounting and reporting standards have been
adopted by the Company which are relevant for the Company. Any change in presentation or classification of items has been
accounted for in accordance with IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors'. However, no
restatement has been deemed necessary in this regard.

IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

This Standard had been notified by the SECP to be effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2018. This
Standard deals with revenue recognition and establishes principles for reporting useful information to users of the financial
statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s contracts with
customers. Revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of a good or service and thus has the ability to direct the
use and obtain the benefits from the good or service. The standard replaces IAS 18, ‘Revenue’, and IAS 11, ‘Construction
contracts’, and related interpretations.

The Company has applied IFRS 15 using the modified retrospective approach for transition. This approach requires entities to
recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 15 as an adjustment to the opening balance of un-appropriated profit
in the period of initial application. Comparative prior year periods would not be adjusted. The application of IFRS 15 does not
have any impact on the revenue recognition policy of the Company and therefore, the cumulative effect of initially applying this
standard as an adjustment to the opening balance of un-appropriated profit in the period of initial application is nil.

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018) replaces IAS
18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts, and other related interpretations on revenue recognition. IFRS 15 introduces a
single five-step model for revenue recognition and establishes a comprehensive framework for recognition of revenue from
contracts with customers based on a core principle that an entity should recognize revenue representing the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. IFRS 15 requires entities to exercise judgment, taking into consideration all of the
relevant facts and circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also
specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract.

Set out below, are the amounts by which each financial statement line item is affected as at and for the period ended June 30,
2019 as a result of the adoption of IFRS 15. The adoption of IFRS 15 did not have a material impact on the financial
statements of the Company. The only change is the change in terminologies with no change in amounts to be recognized.
The first column shows amounts prepared under IFRS 15 and the second column shows what the amounts would have been
had IFRS 15 not been adopted:
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FRS15  PreviouslFRs  IN9¢3%e/
(Decrease)
------------------ Rupees in thousands----------------------
LIABILITIES
Contract liabilities - trade and other payables 10,639 - 10,639
Advance from customers - trade and other payables - 10,639 (10,639)

The Company has not presented a third statement of financial position as at the beginning of the the preceding period as the
Company believes that the there is no effect of restatement and reclassifications.

3.1.1.2 IFRS 16 'Leases'

The Company has adopted IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019) during the
period that has replaced IAS 17 - Leases, IFRIC 4 - Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease, SIC-15 - Operating
Leases - Incentives and SIC-27 - Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS 16 aims
to set out the principles for recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. It introduces a single lessee
accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for virtually all of the leases. IFRS 16 includes an
optional exemptions for certain short-term leases and leases of low-value assets for lessees. A lessee is required to recognize
a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to
make the lease payments. Under the previous standard, IAS 17, lessees were required to make a distinction between a
finance lease (on balance sheet) and an operating lease (off balance sheet). IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements of IAS 17 'Leases'. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases differently. However, as the IASB has updated the guidance on
the definition of a lease as well as the guidance on the combination and separation of contracts, lessors will also be affected
by the new standard. The adoption of IFRS 16 has necessitated change in accounting policy for the Company.

The Company has applied IFRS 16 using the cumulative catch-up approach and therefore the comparative information
presented has not been restated and continues to be reported under IAS 17 and related interpretations.

On transition to IFRS 16, the Company has elected to use the following practical expedients under IFRS 16 to leases
previously classified as operating leases under IAS 17:

- Applied IFRS 16 only to contracts that were previously identified as leases. Contracts that were not identified as leases under
IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 were not reassessed for whether there is a lease;

- A single discount rate has been applied to portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

- Leases with a remaining term of twelve months or less from the date of application have been accounted for as short-term
leases (i.e. not recognized in the statement of financial position) even though the initial term of the leases from lease
commencement date may have been more than twelve months;

- Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

The Company, as a lessee, previously used to classify leases as operating or finance leases based on its assessment of
whether the lease transferred significantly all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset to the
Company. The Company used to recognize minimum lease payments in full as an expense. Now, under IFRS 16, the
Company recognizes right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases, after taking into account the elections made for
available practical expedients described above.

Previously, the Company determined at contract inception whether an arrangement was or contained a lease under IFRIC 4
'Determining Whether an Arrangement contains a Lease'. The Company now assesses whether a contract is, or contains a
lease based on the new definition of a lease. Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Company depreciates right-of-use assets in depreciation and amortization and unwounds the discount on lease liability
into finance cost.
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3.1.13

On transition, lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at the
Company's incremental borrowing rate as at January 1, 2019, the date of initial application. Right-of-use assets were
measured at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments. There
has been no impact on the opening equity.

The Company has applied IAS 36 Impairment of Assets to ROU assets at the date of initial application and assessed that ROU
assets are not impaired as at that date.

On transition to IFRS 16, the Company has recognized an additional Rs. 254.34 million of right-of-use assets (adjusted by
prepaid lease payments of Rs. 3.49 million) and Rs. 250.85 million of lease liabilities in the statement of financial position. The
Company used its incremental borrowing rate at January 1, 2019 to discount the lease payments. The weighted average
incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities on January 1, 2019 was 13.35%.

The reconciliation of aggregate lease liability recognized in the statement of financial position at January 1, 2019 with the
Company’s operating lease commitment as at December 31, 2018 is as follows:

Rs. in'000
Operating lease commitment as at December 31, 2018 450,841
Recognition exemption for short-term leases (10,829)
Effect of discounting those lease commitments at an annual rate of 13.35% (189,165)
Lease liabilities recognized at January 1, 2019 as a result of initial application of IFRS 16 250,847

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments'

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP') through SRO 1007(1)/2017 dated October 4, 2017 had notified
that IFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’ would be applicable for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2018, however,
subsequent to reporting date, SECP through SRO 229(1)/2019 dated February 14, 2019 has notified the deferment of this
standard to reporting period/year ending on or after June 30, 2019 (earlier application is permitted). Consequently, the
Company has adopted this standard in the preparation of these condensed interim financial statements for the six-month
period ended June 30, 2019.

The Company has adopted IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ during the period that has replaced IFRIC 9 - Reassessment of
Embedded Derivatives, IAS 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, IFRS 9 (2009), IFRS 9 (2010) and IFRS
9 (2013). IFRS 9 shall now govern the classification, recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of financial
instruments.

IFRS 9 has introduced new requirements governing the recognition and measurement of financial instruments and impairment
losses on financial assets. IFRS 9 also includes new guidelines on hedge accounting. The financial assets are now classified
on the basis of the business model in which they are held and their cash flow characteristics. Equity instruments currently
classified as held for trading financial assets may now be recognized at fair value through other comprehensive income. The
change in recognition of impairment of financial assets from the incurred loss model to the expected loss model will result in
earlier recognition of expected losses in the profit and loss account. The loss allowances to be recognized on receivables will
now be determined using the full lifetime expected loss model. The default rates will be based on historical and forward-
looking data. The requirements regarding financial liabilities remain mostly unchanged.

The Company has applied IFRS 9 prospectively, with an initial application date of January 1, 2019. The Company has not
restated the comparative information, which continues to be reported under IAS 39. Differences arising, if any, from the
adoption of IFRS 9 have been recognized directly in retained earnings and other components of the equity.

Effects of IFRS 9, Financial Instruments

The reclassification of financial instruments from IAS 39 to IFRS 9 categories depending on the applicable business model
and the associated contractual cash flows did not materially affect the condensed interim financial statements.

(a) Classification and measurement

Under IFRS 9, debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss, amortized cost, or fair value
through OCI. The classification is based on two criteria: the Company’s business model for managing the assets; and whether
the instruments’ contractual cash flows represent ‘solely payments of principal and interest’ on the principal amount
outstanding.
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The assessment of the Company’s business model was made as of the date of initial application, January 1, 2019. The
assessment of whether contractual cash flows on debt instruments are solely comprised of principal and interest was made
based on the facts and circumstances as at the initial recognition of the assets.

The classification and measurement requirements of IFRS 9 did not have a significant impact to the Company. The Company
continued measuring at fair value all financial assets previously held at fair value under IAS 39. The following are the changes
in the classification of the Company’s financial assets:

- Financial assets classified as Loans and receivables as at December 31, 2018 are held to collect contractual cash flows
and give rise to cash flows representing solely payments of principal and interest. These are classified and measured as
debt instruments at amortized cost beginning January 1, 2019.

- Quoted debt investments classified as Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets as at December 31, 2018 are classified and
measured as debt instruments at fair value through OCI beginning January 1, 2019. The Company expects not only to hold
the assets to collect contractual cash flows, but also to sell a significant amount on a relatively frequent basis.

The Company has not designated any financial liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss. There are no changes in
classification and measurement for the Company’s financial liabilities.

In summary, upon the adoption of IFRS 9, the Company had the following required or elected reclassifications as at January 1, 2019:

|IAS 39 Category | | IFRS 9 Category |
Fair value )
AmT:gt;; der through profit or - Amortized cost Fair valgectlhrough
loss
-wmmemememee-————-RUpees in thousands-------------------meeeemen

Loans and receivables

Long term loans 2,758 - 2,758

Long term deposits 46,677 - 46,677

Long term trade receivables 54,578 - 54,578

Long term investment 50,000 - 50,000

Trade debts* 1,674,557 - 1,483,772

Short term deposits 458,565 - 458,565

Other receivables 88,880 - 88,880

Cash and bank balances 7,258 - 7,258
Available for sale

Listed equity investments 38,115 - - 38,115

*The change in carrying amount is a result of additional impairment allowance. See the discussion on impairment below:
(b) Impairment

The adoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Company’s accounting for impairment losses for financial assets by replacing
IAS 39’s incurred loss approach with a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach. IFRS 9 requires the Company to
recognize an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss and contract assets.

Upon adoption of IFRS 9 the Company recognized additional impairment on the Company’s Trade debts of Rs. 190.785 million which
resulted in a decrease in retained earnings of Rs. 190.785 as at January 1, 2019. Impairment losses do not reduce the carrying amount
of debt instruments at fair value through OClI in the statement of financial position, which remains at fair value.

Set out below is the reconciliation of the ending impairment allowances in accordance with IAS 39 to the opening loss allowances
determined in accordance with IFRS 9:

Allowance for

impairment Re- ECL under IFRS 9
under IAS 39 as measurement & at January 1,
at December 31, 2019

2018

--------------------- Rupees in '000------------------—-
Loans and receivables under IAS 39 / Financial assets at amortized cost
under IFRS 9 2,064,433 190,785 2,255,218
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3.1.1.3 IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

This IFRIC clarifies how the recognition and measurement requirements of IAS 12 ‘Income taxes’, are applied
where there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. The IFRIC explains how to recognize and measure
deferred and current income tax assets and liabilities where there is uncertainty over a tax treatment. An
uncertain tax treatment is any tax treatment applied by an entity where there is uncertainty over whether that
treatment will be accepted by the tax authority. The IFRIC applies to all aspects of income tax accounting where
there is an uncertainty regarding the treatment of an item, including taxable profit or loss, the tax bases of assets
and liabilities, tax losses and credits and tax rates. There is no impact on these interim financial statements for
application of this IFRIC.

Note 4
Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

The preparation of condensed interim (un-audited) financial statements in conformity with approved accounting and
reporting standards requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates, associated
assumptions and judgments are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. In
preparing these condensed interim (un-audited) financial statements, the significant judgments made by the management
in applying accounting policies and the key sources of estimation were the same as those that were applied to the
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 except for impairment testing of assets; taxation; provision for
expected credit losses; identifying performance obligations in a bundled sale of goods and installation services;
determining the timing of performance obligation satisfaction; determining method to estimate variable consideration;
consideration of significant financing component in a contract; and estimation of stand-alone selling prices.

Note 5
Authorized Share Capital

June 30, December 31, June 30, December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018
(Un-audited) (Audited) (Un-audited) (Audited)
No.of Shares e (Rupees in '000)--------------

Ordinary share capital:

1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 15,000,000 15,000,000

Preference share capital:

500,000 500,000 Preference shares of USD 100 each 6,000,000 6,000,000

5.1 During the period, shareholders of the Company resolved in annual general meeting held on April 30, 2019 that
the authorized capital of the Company be increased from PKR 21 billion to PKR 29 billion divided into 2.9 billion
ordinary shares of PKR 10 which may be utilized to issue ordinary shares of PKR 10 each and / or preference
shares of PKR 10 each of the Company as the Board of Directors of the Company may decide from time to time
in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017. Regulatory requirements as to the alteration of Memorandum and
Articles of Association are in process.
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Note 6
Ordinary Share Capital
June 30, December 31, June 30, December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018
(Un-audited) (Audited) Note (Un-audited) (Audited)
No. of Shares --------------(Rupees in '000)--------------
344,000,000 344,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 3,440,000 3,440,000
fully paid in cash
309,965,789 309,965,789 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 3,099,658 3,099,658
issued in accordance with the
scheme of merger
98,094,868 98,094,868 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 980,949 980,949
issued as fully paid bonus shares
108,510,856 108,510,856  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 1,085,109 1,085,109
issued against convertible loan
945,350,404 945,350,404 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 9,453,504 9,453,504
issued against convertible
preference shares
6.6 18,059,220 18,059,220
Less: Discount on issue of 6.7 (7,223,276) (7,223,276)
shares
1,805,921,917 1,805,921,917 10,835,944 10,835,944

6.1 During the period, Nil (December 31, 2018: 56,100) convertible preference shares and accumulated preference dividend
thereon amounting to Rs. Nil (December 31, 2018: Rs. 198.729 million) have been converted into ordinary shares in
accordance with the agreed terms and conditions detailed in Note 7.2. Legal formalities for allotment of 306,887,260
shares (December 31, 2018: 306,887,260) by SECP are under process.

6.2 The terms of agreement between the Company and certain lenders impose certain restrictions on distribution of dividends
by the Company.

6.3 Worldcall Services (Pvt.) Limited, parent of the Company, holds 501,862,290 shares (December 31, 2018: 501,862,290
shares) representing 27.79% (December 31, 2018: 27.79%) in the Company. Out of these shares, 175 million shares are
pledged to secure TFC liability which will be released with quarterly scheduled principal repayments proportionately
starting from June 2019 (refer to note 9).

6.4 Ferret Consulting F.Z.C., an associate of the Company, holds 324,444,643 shares (December 31, 2018: 324,444,643
shares) representing 17.97% (December 31, 2018: 17.97%) in the Company.

6.5 AMB Management Consultants (Pvt.) Limited, an associate of the Company, holds 931,543 shares (December 31, 2018:
135,576,543 shares) representing 0.05% (December 31, 2018: 7.51%) in the Company.

June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
(Un-audited) (Audited)
---—---—-(Rupees in '000)--------------

6.6 Reconciliation of outstanding ordinary share capital is as follows:

Opening balance 18,059,220 11,211,158

Add: Ordinary share capital issued against convertible preference share capital - 6,848,062

Closing balance 18,059,220 18,059,220
6.7 Reconciliation of discount on issue of shares is as follows:

Opening balance 7,223,276 1,260,612
Add: Discount on issuance of ordinary shares during the period / year - 5,962,664
Closing balance 7,223,276 7,223,276
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Note 7
Preference Share Capital
June 30, December 31, June 30, December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018
Note (Un-audited) (Audited) (Un-audited) (Audited)
-------- No. of Shares-------- ------------(Rupees in '000)------------
Opening balance 255,400 311,500 2,585,646 3,150,236
Less: Preference shares converted into
ordinary shares during the year 7.3 - (56,100) - (564,590)
255,400 255,400 2,585,646 2,585,646

71 These preference shares are US Dollars denominated, non-voting, cumulative and convertible preference shares (“CPS”, or
“preference shares”) having a face value of USD 100 each.

7.2 The conversion option was exercisable by the holder at any time after the 1st anniversary of the issue date but not later than the 5th
anniversary. On 5th anniversary, CPS had to be mandatorily converted into ordinary voting common shares. CPS were to be
converted at the conversion ratio defined in the agreement at 10% discount on share price after first anniversary and thereby
increased by 10% additional discount for each completed year of anniversary.

7.3 In accordance with the terms detailed in Note 6.2 above, certain preference shareholders have exercised conversion option. Thus,
their CPS and accrued preference dividend thereon have been converted into ordinary shares as reflected in Note 6.1 and Note
8.2. Out of these converted, 22,000 preference shares (December 31, 2018: 46,100) are yet to be cancelled by the Company in
SECP's records.

7.4  CPS holders are entitled to non-cash dividend which shall be calculated @ 5.9% per annum on each of the preference shares or
the dividend declared by the Company for Ordinary Shareholders, whichever is higher.

7.5  Certain preference shareholders have served conversion notices for conversion of 38,800 preference shares. The Company is yet
to issue ordinary shares against these CPS along with accumulated dividend thereon. Such conversion would result in issuance of
541,237,537 ordinary shares.

7.6 Worldcall Services (Pvt.) Limited, parent of the Company, holds 34,500 preference shares (December 31, 2018: 34,500 preference
shares) in the Company.

7.7 Ferret Consulting F.Z.C., an associate of the Company, holds 164,100 preference shares (December 31, 2018: 164,100 preference
shares) in the Company.

7.8 AMB Management Consultants (Pvt.) Limited, an associate of the Company, holds 4,300 preference shares (December 31, 2018:
4,300 preference shares) in the Company.

7.9  Mandatory date of conversion of CPS has expired during the last year and the Company has failed to redeem the un-converted
preference shares in a timely fashion as contemplated by its Articles of Association. Thus, the Company is in default of Regulation
12 of the Companies (Further Issue of Shares) Regulations 2018. According to these Regulations, a listed Company that fails to,
completely or partially, fulfill or comply with any of the relevant terms and conditions of preference shares is considered to be in an
event of default.

7.10 During the period, the preference shareholders in an Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on January 4, 2019 and ordinary
shareholders in annual general meeting held on April 30, 2019 have given their assent for the conversion of preference shares be
made at nominal value of PKR 10 each and for the amendments in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.
Resultantly, preference shares along with dividend accrued thereon shall be converted on any date from the mandatory conversion
date, at par value of PKR 10 each. However, the shares for which notices have been received before mandatory conversion date
would be converted on the terms prevalent on the date of notice.

Note 8
Dividend on Preference Shares June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
Note (Un-audited) (Audited)
-------------- (Rupees in '000)-------------
Dividends on preference shares 8.1 949,662 949,662

8.1 This represents accumulated dividend on preference shares which is not payable in cash rather it will be converted into ordinary
shares as and when the preference shares are converted into ordinary shares.

8.2 During the period, cumulative preference dividend amounting to Rs. Nil (December 31, 2018: Rs. 198.72 million) was converted
into ordinary shares as a result of conversion option exercised by certain preference shareholders in accordance with the terms
and conditions given in Note 7.2 above.
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Note 9
Term Finance Certificates June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
Note (Un-audited) (Audited)
—————————————— (Rupees in '000)------------
Opening balance 1,317,110 1,517,110
Less: Payments made during the period/year (30,000) (200,000)
1,287,110 1,317,110
Less: Current and overdue portion (150,000) (130,006)
1,137,110 1,187,104
Add: Deferred markup 9.1 435,012 396,659
1,572,122 1,583,763

Term finance certificates (TFCs) have a face value of Rs. 5,000 per certificate. These TFCs carry mark up at the rate
of six months average KIBOR plus 1.0% per annum (December 31, 2018: six month average KIBOR plus 1.6% per
annum), payable quarterly. The mark up rate charged during the year on the outstanding balance ranged from
11.80% to 12.10% (December 31, 2018: 8.03% to 8.21%) per annum.

The liability of these TFCs has been rescheduled in December 2012 and then on April 03, 2015. During last year,
third rescheduling of these TFCs has successfully been executed through signing of the Third Supplemental Trust
Deed between the Trustee and the Company.

In accordance with the 3rd Supplemental Trust Deed executed during last year, the outstanding principal is
repayable by way of quarterly staggered installments with downward revision in markup of 0.60% i.e. revised markup
of six months average KIBOR + 1%. The outstanding markup payable as at the date of restructuring and up to
December 20, 2018 is agreed to be deferred and shall be paid from March 20, 2021 in quarterly installments. 50% of
the markup accrued for the period between December 20, 2018 to December 20, 2020 shall be paid on regular
quarterly basis commencing from March 20, 2019 and the remaining 50% shall be deferred and paid from March 20,
2021. Markup deferred has been measured at present value. Under the revised term sheet, these TFCs are due to
mature on September 20, 2026.

The other main terms were included appointment of one representative as nominee director nominated by the
Trustee which has been appointed.

IGI Investment Bank Limited is the Trustee (herein referred to as the Trustee) under the Trust Deed. These TFCs are
secured against first pari passu charge over the Company's present and future fixed assets including equipment,
plant and machinery, fixtures excluding land and building with 25% margin in addition to all rights, benefits, claims
and interests procured by the Company under:

a) LDl and WLL license issued by PTA to the Company; and
b) Assigned frequency spectrum as per deed of assignment.

Further, 175 million sponsor's, shares are pledged for investors which will be released with quarterly scheduled
principal repayments proportionately starting from June 2019.

9.1 Deferred markup

Deferred markup 9.1.1 623,261 588,776
Adjustment due to impact of IFRS 9 9.1.2 (188,249) (192,117)
435,012 396,659
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June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
(Un-audited) (Audited)

--(Rupees in '000)---

9.1.1  Reconciliation of deferred markup is as follows:

Opening balance 588,776 -
Add: Markup deferred during the period / year 34,485 588,776
623,261 588,776
9.1.2 Reconciliation is as follows:
Opening balance 192,117 -
Add: Discounting impact of deferred markup 12,580 192,117
204,697 192,117
Less: Unwinding impact of discounted deferred markup (16,448) -
188,249 192,117
Note 10
Long Term Financing
June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
Note (Un-audited) (Audited)

--(Rupees in '000)---

From Banking Companies (secured)
Askari Bank Limited 10.1 - 13,893
Allied Bank Limited 10.2 97,401 -
97,401 13,893

10.1  Askari Bank Limited

Opening balance 48,627 76,414
Repayments / adjustments (13,893) (27,787)
34,734 48,627

Less: Current and overdue portion (34,734 (34,734
- 13,893

This represents liability created by the bank due to encashment of performance guarantee issued in favor of
Universal Service Fund (USF). The tenure of the loan is 3 years and is repayable by April 30, 2020. It carries mark up
at 6 months KIBOR plus 2% per annum. The mark up charged during the period on the outstanding balance ranged
from 12.80% to 15.11% (December 31, 2018: 8.43% to 8.61%) per annum. The loan is secured through joint
collateral comprising first joint pari passu hypothecation charge of Rs. 1.26 billion over all present and future fixed
and current assets of the Company with 25% margin, first exclusive assignment of all present and future receivables
of LDI business arm of the Company in favor of lender with 25% margin and collection accounts with the Bank for
routing of LDI receivables.

10.2  Allied Bank Limited

Opening balance - 51,820
Transfer from running finance 123,000 -
Repayments / adjustments (2,303) (51,820)
120,697 -
Less: Current and overdue portion (27,697) -
93,000 -
Add: Deferred markup 6,971 -
Less: Discounting of deferred markup (2,570) -
4,401 -
97,401 -
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This represents balance transferred as a result of restructuring of short term running finance (RF) facility to Term
Loan Facility. Principle will be repaid in 48 stepped up monthly installments starting from January 2019 till December
2022. Markup will be accrued and will be serviced in 12 equal monthly installments, starting from January 01, 2023.
Effective markup rate applicable will be 3 Month KIBOR + 85 bps. The facility is secured against Joint pari passu
hypothecation charge on present and future current and fixed assets excluding land and building.

Note 11
Sponsor's Loan
June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
Note (Un-audited) (Audited)

Sponsor's Loan - unsecured

- Interest bearing 1.1 493,500 417,300
- Non-interest bearing 1.2 902,416 838,631
1,395,916 1,255,931

11.1  Opening balance 417,300 331,500
Exchange loss 76,200 85,800
493,500 417,300

This represents USD denominated loan obtained from Worldcall Services (Private) Limited, Parent
Company. It carries mark up at 12 months KIBOR plus 1%. The mark up rate charged during the period on
the outstanding balance is 12.34% (December 31, 2018: 7.50%) per annum.

11.2  This represents interest free loan obtained from Worldcall Services (Private) Limited, Parent Company. The
amount is not payable over the period of next 3 years.

In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9, this loan has been carried at amortized cost and the relevant
difference is being charged to the statement of profit or loss. During the last year, imputed markup was
calculated at 12 months KIBOR plus 2% per annum and accounted for.

Opening balance 1,221,337 368,500
Transferred from current account - 852,837
Amount of loan 1,221,337 1,221,337
Adjustment due to impact of IFRS 9:
Discounting (382,706) (406,813)
Unwinding of discount 63,785 24,107
(318,921) (382,706)
902,416 838,631
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Note 12
Lease Liabilities June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
Note  (Un-audited) (Audited)
-------------- (Rupees in '000)---+--------
Lease liabilities 121 196,024 -
121 Opening balance - -
Add: Adoption effect of IFRS 16 Leases 250,847 -
Add: Accrued lease rentals as at December 31, 2018 7,848 -
Add: Additions during the year 10,506 -
Add: Interest expense 15,924 -
Less: Lease payments (30,827) -
Gross liability 254,298 -
Less: current portion (58,274) -
Closing balance 196,024 -

122 Summary of amounts relating to leases charged in different line items of the financial statements is as follows:

2019 2018
Included in Note (Rs. in '000)
Interest expense on lease liabilities Finance cost 15,924 -
Amortization charge for ROU assets Depreciation and amortization 23,255 -
Carrying amount of ROU assets Property, plant and equipment 15.2 1,243,337 -
Expense relating to short-term leases Direct costs 696 -
Expense relating to short-term leases Operating costs 10,134 -
Repayment of lease liability Financing Activities 30,828 -
12.3  Maturity analysis of contractually undiscounted cash flows
- Between .
At June 30, 2019 (Un-audited) Within o toFive  Later than Five
One Year Years
Years
Lease liabilities 58,274 242,376 198,240

12.4  Nature of leasing activities

The Company's leases comprise cables and certain premises for installation of equipment, use as warehouse, guest house
and office operations. Periodic rentals are usually fixed over the lease term. However, in some contracts, it is customary for
lease contracts to provide escalation in lease payments after specified period of time. These neither contain any variable
lease payments nor any lease incentives. The Company is not committed to any leases not yet commenced at the reporting

date.

Lease terms, and the remaining lease terms at the date of initial application, vary. Remaining lease term of existing lease

contracts for which lease liability is booked ranges from 2 to 14 years.
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Note 13
Short Term Borrowings
June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
Note (Un-audited) (Audited)

-------------- (Rupees in '000)--------------

Banking companies (secured - interest bearing):

- Running finances 131 442,212 562,458

Related parties (unsecured - interest free):

- Ferret Consulting F.Z.C. 13.2 246,750 139,100

- Worldcall Services (Private) Limited 13.3 79,893 -
768,855 701,558

13.1  These represent short term running finance facilities available from commercial banks under mark up

Note 14

arrangements. One of the running finance facility was transferred to long term financing during the year as a
result of restructuring of short term running finance (RF) facility to Term Loan Facility (note 10.2).

This represents USD denominated interest free amount of USD 1.5 million received from M/s Ferret
Consulting - F.Z.C to meet the working capital requirements. An amount of USD 0.5 million was received
during the period. The amount is repayable on demand.

This represents interest free amount received from M/s Worldcall Services (Private) Limited to meet the
working capital requirements. The amount is repayable on demand. Reconciliation is as follows:

Opening balance - -

Add: Amount paid by WSL on behalf of the Company 52,893 -
Add: Receipts during the period / year 27,000 -
79,893 -

Contingencies and Commitments

There is no significant change in the status of contingencies from the preceding annual financial statements of the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2018, except for the followings:

141

14.2

As disclosed in note 21.4.3 of the annual financial statements of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2018, one of the Company's supplier and its allied international identities had filed civil suit before
Islamabad Civil Court for recovery of USD 12.3 million and Rs. 68 million along with damages of USD 20
million. As per recent progress of the case, the honorable court, on application of the Company, has
dismissed this petition on July 10, 2019 for its presentation before proper forum.

During the period, the Company received a show cause notice from Punjab Revenue Authority (PRA) on
account of non-deduction and deposit of withholding sales tax as per the provisions of the Punjab Sales Tax
on Services (Withholding) Rules, 2015 amounting to Rs. 49.09 million on services rendered during January
2017 to December 2017. The Company filed a writ petition before Honorable Lahore High Court on March 7,
2019 against initiation of such proceedings by the Punjab Revenue Authority pleading to stop such frivolous
proceedings. The Honorable Court has allowed PRA to continue proceedings under the impugned show
cause notice but at the same time it was restrained from passing a final order. The writ petition is pending
adjudication. The management is hopeful that its viewpoint shall be upheld; thus no provision has been
incorporated in these financial statements.
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14.3 During the period, the Company received a notice from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) alleging charge
of super tax under section 4B of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 amounting to Rs. 43.82 million for the tax
year 2018. The Company filed a writ petition before Honorable Lahore High Court on May 18, 2019
impugning vires of section 4B in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Honorable Court has restrained FBR
from adopting coercive measures. The writ petition is pending adjudication. The management is hopeful that
its viewpoint shall be upheld; thus no provision has been incorporated in these financial statements.

Guarantees and Letter of Credits

June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
(Un-audited) (Audited)

Outstanding guarantees and letter of credits 329,638 349,100
Commitments
Commitments in respect of capital expenditure 137,456 138,330
Note 15
Property, Plant and Equipment
June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
Note (Un-audited) (Audited)
-------------- (Rupees in '000)--------------

Operating fixed assets 15.1 7,020,051 7,217,963
Right-of-use assets 15.2 1,243,337 1,001,746
Capital work-in-progress 58,352 56,401

8,321,740 8,276,110

15.1  Operating fixed assets

Opening book value 7,217,963 6,480,167
Additions during the period / year 15.1.1 255,828 150,532
Revaluation surplus during the period / year - 1,340,623

7,473,791 7,971,322
Disposals / settlement (at book value) for the period / year 15.1.2 (25,758) (70,276)
Depreciation charged during the period / year (427,982) (683,083)
Closing book value 7,020,051 7,217,963

15.1.1 Detail of additions
Leasehold improvements 3,347 5,500
Plant and equipment 250,875 133,306
Office equipment 233 5,500
Furniture and fixtures 890 909
Computers 483 5211
Laboratory and other equipment - 106
255,828 150,532
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June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
(Un-audited) (Audited)

--(Rupees in '000)---- --

15.1.2 Book values of assets disposed off

Freehold Land - 19,800
Leasehold improvements - -
Plant and equipment 25,758 49,725
Office Equipment - 165
Computers - 58
Furniture and fixtures - -
Vehicles - 528

25,758 70,276

15.2 Right-of-use assets

Opening balance 1,001,746 333,853
Add: Adoption effect of IFRS 16 Leases 250,847 -
Add: Prepaid lease rentals as at December 31, 2018 3,493 -
Add: Additions during the period / year 10,506 720,000
Less: Amortization charge for the period / year (23,255) (52,107)
Closing balance 1,243,337 1,001,746
Lease Term (Years) 2to 14 -

15.2.1 Depreciation on right-of-use assets has been allocated to depreciation and amortization on face of the
statement of profit or loss.

15.2.2  There are no variable lease payments in the lease contracts. There were no leases with residual value
guarantees or leases not yet commenced to which the Company is committed.

Note 16
Long Term Investment
June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
(Un-audited) (Audited)

Wholly owned subsidiary Company - at cost [unquoted]

Route 1 Digital (Private) Limited
30,000 (December 31, 2018: 30,000) ordinary shares of
Rs. 100 each, equity held 100% (December 31, 2018: 100%) 50,000 50,000

16.1  The Company has acquired 100% shares of Route 1 Digital (Private) Limited during last year. The principal
place of business of Route 1 Digital (Private) Limited is situated at 2nd Floor 300-Y Block Phase IIl Defence
Housing Authority Lahore, Pakistan. This investment in subsidiary is stated at cost. From the total
consideration amount of Rs. 50 million, Rs. 5 million has bee paid as at the reporting date.

16.2  This investment has been made in accordance with the requirements under the Companies Act, 2017.
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Note 17
Trade Debts
June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
Note (Un-audited) (Audited)

Considered good - unsecured 1,462,335 1,674,557
Considered doubtful - unsecured 2,292,437 2,064,433
3,754,772 3,738,990
Less: Impairment allowance 1741 (2,292,437) (2,064,433)
1,462,335 1,674,557

17.1  Impairment allowance

Opening balance 2,064,433 2,033,988
Add: Effect of adoption of IFRS 9 190,785 -
Add: Provision for expected credit losses 37,219 30,445
2,292,437 2,064,433
Less: Write offs - -
Closing balance 2,292,437 2,064,433
Note 18
Revenue Half Year Ended June 30,
2019 2018
Note (Un-audited) (Un-audited)

Disaggregated revenue information:

Telecom 992,814 1,046,010
Broadband 18.1 1,301,754 1,275,267
Other 13,517 31,653

2,308,085 2,352,930
Less: Sales tax (27,417) (48,948)
Less: Discount and commission (11,734) (13,273)

2,268,934 2,290,709

18.1 This includes revenue amounting to Rs. 507.545 million (2018: Rs. 720 million) in respect of agreement
for Indefeasible Right of Use of metro fiber with a customer. The agreement grants both parties to the
agreement IRU for 20 years.

Note 19
Other Income - Net

This includes the impact of write back of provisions and unclaimed liabilities amounting to Rs. 374.52 million
(June 30, 2018: Rs. 559.43 million).
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Note 20
Cash Generated from Operations Half Year Ended June 30,
2019 2018
(Un-audited) (Un-audited)
-------------- (Rupees in '000)--------------
Profit before taxation 173,025 657,539
Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items:
- Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 427,982 323,762
- Amortization on intangible assets 195,017 195,967
- Amortization of long term trade receivable (10,456) (9,540)
- Provision for expected credit losses 37,219 93
- Amortization of right of use assets 23,255 -
- Revenue from IRU agreement - (720,000)
- Disposal of fiber under IRU arrangement 24,543 -
- Reversal of Provision for Loan and Advances (1,189) -
- Provisions and unclaimed liabilities written back (874,521) (559,427)
- Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (645) (1,412)
- Discounting of long term deposit - (16,220)
- Unwinding of discounted long term deposit 11,419 -
- Unwinding of discounted deferred markup on TFCs 16,448 -
- Unwinding of discounted sponsor's loan 63,785 12,054
- Post employment benefits 32,279 28,977
- Exchange loss on foreign currency loans 114,765 33,300
- Discounting of deferred markup on TFCs (12,580) (156,915)
- Discounting of sponsors' loan - (34,907)
- Discounting of deferred markup on long term financing (2,570) -
- Exchange (gain) / loss on foreign currency payables - net (95,601) 88,106
- Imputed interest on lease liability 15,925 -
- Finance cost 141,925 102,771
607,000 (713,391)
Operating income / (loss) before working capital changes 780,025 (55,852)
(Increase) / decrease in current assets
- Stores and spares 8,978 (1,719)
- Stock-in-trade - 9,385
- Trade debts (563,308) (99,261)
- Loans and advances (58,780) (42,822)
- Deposits and prepayments (18,054) (28,116)
- Other receivables (1,532) (13,127)
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
- Unearned revenue 18,440 (25,605)
- Trade and other payables 197,320 107,249
(416,936) (94,016)
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 363,089 (149,868)
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Note 21
Transaction with Related Parties

Related parties comprise the parent Company, subsidiary, associated companies / undertakings, directors of the Company and their close relatives
and key management personnel of the Company. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties.
Significant transactions and balances with related parties are as follows:

Half Year Ended June 30,

2019 2018
(Un-audited) (Un-audited)
Transactions during the year with local companies Rupees in '000;
Related party Relationship Nature of transaction
Worldcall Services Short term borrowings received during the period 27,000 54,400
(Private) Limited Amount paid by WSL on behalf of the Company 52,893 -
Parent Funds repaid by the Company during the year - 32,652
Company Sponsor's loan received during the period - 300,000
Markup adjusted during the period 107,923 -
Markup accrued during the period 31,603 18,229
Route 1 Digital (Private) Limited Investment made during the period - 50,000
Wholly Owned .
o Expenses borne on behalf of subsidiary 3,079 -
Subsidiary
Worldcall Business Solutions Expenses borne on behalf of associate 10,038 -
(Private) Limited Associate
Worldcall Cable (Private) Expenses borne on behalf of associate 600 -
Limited
Ride Hail (Private) Limited Expenses borne on behalf of associate 14 -
Key management personnel Salaries and employees benefits 63,972 31,348
Transactions during the year with foreign companies
Related party Relationship Nature of transaction
Ferret Consulting - FZ.C Dividend on CPS - 178,073
Short term borrowings obtained during the period 69,085 -

Ferret Consulting, F.Z.C is incorporated in United Arab Emirates having its registered address at SM-Office, E1- 26, A032 , Ajman, United Arab
Emirates. Basis for association of the Company with Ferret is common directorship. Mr. Babar Ali Syed is the Managing Director of Ferret Consulting.
Ferret Consulting is actively operative.

All transactions with related parties have been carried out on mutually agreed terms and conditions.

June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
(Un-audited) (Audited)
Outstanding Balance as at the period/year end Rupees in '000;
Worldcall Services Sponsor's loan - interest bearing 493,500 417,300
(Private) Limited Sponsor's loan - non interest bearing 902,416 838,631
Dividend on CPS 130,868 130,868
Accrued markup 5,916 75,913
Short term borrowings - interest free 79,893 -
Ferret Consulting - FZ.C Dividend on CPS 606,303 606,303
Short term borrowings - interest free 246,750 139,100
AMB Management Consultants
(Pvt) Limited Dividend on CPS 16,311 16,311
Route 1 Digital (Private) Limited Investment in subsidiary - 50,000
Other receivables 10,848 7,769
Worldcall Business Solutions
(Private) Limited Other receivables 37,249 27,211
Ride Hail (Private) Limited Other receivables 14 -
Worldcall Cable (Private) Limited ~ Other receivables 1,840 1,240
Key management Payable against expenses, salaries and other employee benefits 99,801 89,805
personnel Long term loans - 269
Advance against expenses 15,030 12,455

These are in normal course of business.
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Note 22
Financial Risk Management

22.1 Financial risk factors

The Company'’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk.

The condensed interim financial statements (un-audited) do not include all financial risk management information and disclosures required
in the annual financial statements, and should be read in conjunction with the Company’s annual financial statements as at December 31,
2018.

There have been no changes in any risk management policies since the year end.

22.2 Fair value estimation

22.2.1 Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date. Set out below, is a comparison of the carrying amounts
and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities as at the reporting date:

June 30, 2019 December 31, 2018
Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
‘Rs. in '000-

Financial Assets:
Long term trade receivable 360,882 772,004 54,578 372,186
Financial Liabilities:
Term finance certificates 1,722,122 1,910,371 1,713,769 1,905,886
Long term financing 159,832 162,402 48,627 48,627
Sponsors' loan 1,395,916 1,714,837 1,255,931 1,638,637

3,277,870 3,787,610 3,018,327 3,593,150

Carrying amounts of all other financial assets and financial liabilities approximate to their fair values. During the period, there were no significant
changes in the business or economic circumstances that affect the fair value of these assets and liabilities.

22.2.2 The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices) (level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs) (level 3).
The following table presents the Company’s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at June 30, 2019:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rupees in '000

Assets

Short-term investments 28,806 - - 28,806

The following table presents the Company’s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at December 31, 2018:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rupees in '000

Assets

Short-term investments 38,115 - - 38,115

During the period, there were no significant changes in the business or economic circumstances that affect the fair value of the Company's financial
assets and financial liabilities. Furthermore, there were no reclassifications of financial assets except those specified in Note 3.1.1.3 due to adoption
of IFRS 9 and there were no changes in valuation techniques during the period.
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Note 23
Segment Information

As per IFRS 8, "Operating Segments', operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting used by the
chief operating decision maker. The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company has been identified as the chief operating decision
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.

The CEO is responsible for the Company's entire product portfolio and considers business as a single operating segment. The Company's
assets allocation decisions are based on a single integrated investment strategy and the Company's performance is evaluated on an
overall basis.

The internal reporting provided to the CEO for the Company's assets, liabilities and performance is prepared on a consistent basis with
the measurement and recognition principles of approved accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

The Company is domiciled in Pakistan. All of the Company's assets are located in Pakistan as at the reporting date.

Note 24
Date of Authorization for Issue

These condensed interim financial statements (un-audited) were approved and authorized for issue on 31 August 2019 by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

Note 25
Corresponding Figures

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged / reclassified, wherever necessary, to reflect more appropriate presentation of events and
transactions for the purpose of comparison. Following re-arrangements / reclassifications have been made in these financial statements:

Nature Reason From To Amount
(Rupees in'000)

Leased asset Required by IFRS 16 Operating fixed assets Right-of-use assets 1,001,746
Advance received Required by IFRS 15 Advance from Contract liabilities - 10,639
customers - trade and trade and other payables
other payables

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WORLDCALL
TELECOM LIMITED ON REVIEW OF CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated condensed interim statement of financial
position of WorldCall Telecom Limited and its Subsidiary Company as at June 30, 2019 and the
related consolidated condensed interim statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated condensed interim statement of changes in equity, and consolidated
condensed interim statement of cash flows, and notes to the consolidated financial statements for
the six-month period then ended (here-in-after referred to as the “consolidated interim financial
statements”). Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated interim financial statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion
on these consolidated financial statements based on our review. The figures included in the
consolidated condensed interim statement of profit or loss and consolidated condensed interim
statement of comprehensive income for the quarters ended June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2019 have
not been reviewed, as we are required to review only the cumulative figures for half year ended June
30,2019.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements
2410, “Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”.
A review of consolidated interim financial statements consists of making inquiries, primarily of
persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review
procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that
we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly,
we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying consolidated interim financial statements are not prepared, in all material respects,
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim
financial reporting.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 2.6 to the consolidated condensed interim financial statements (un-
audited), which indicates that the Group has accumulated losses of Rs. 13,062.71 million and its
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 5,506.64 million. These conditions, alongwith
others set forth in note14to the consolidated condensed interim financial statements (un-audited),
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Other Matter

The consolidated condensed interim financial statements for the six-month period ended June 30,
2018 are notreviewed.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report in Amin Ali.

Headhes GG

LAHORE HORWATH HUSSAIN CHAUDHURY & CO.
Dated: 31 August 2019 Chartered Accountants
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CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2019

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized share capital:
1,500,000,000 (December 31, 2018: 1,500,000,000} ordinary shares of
Rs. 10 each
500,000 (December 31, 2016 500,000} preference shares of USD 100 each
(USD 50,000,000 equivalent to Rs. §,000,000,000}

QOrdinary share capital

Preference share capital

Dividend on preference shares
Capital reserves

Accumulated loss

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Term finance certificates

Long term financing
Sponsor's loan

License fee payable

Post employment benefits
Long term deposit

Lease liabllities

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Unearned revenue

Accrued mark up

Current portion of non-current liabilities
Short term borrowings

Unclaimed dividend

Provision for taxation - net

Contingencies and Commitments
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Investment properties

Long term trade receivable
Deferred taxation

Long term deposits

CURRENT ASSETS
Stores and spares
Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances
Deposits and prepayments
Short term investments
Other receivables

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

Note

0~ m w

10
1

June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
Un-audited Audited

15,000,000 15,000,000
5,000,000 5,000,000
10,835,944 10,635,044
2,585,646 2,585,646
949,662 249,662
597,467 606,776
(13,062,712} (12,170,318}
1,351,683 1,466,342
3,257,600 3,274,051
572,122 1,563,765
97,401 13,803
1,395,916 1,256,931
1,021,500 1,021,500
272,753 241,020
. 93,560

196,024 :

4,555,716 4,208,667
5,429,119 5,985,295
02,343 73,003
77,807 122,184
375,705 164,740
768,855 701,556
1,807 1,807
349,042 276,261
8,004,678 8,325,765
15,906,067 15,600,506
5,325,174 8,279,862
2,158,057 2,353,114
50,210 50,210
380,882 54,576
2,384,604 2,081,289
41,097 46,677
13,320,044 13,065,730
51,663 60,661
204,777 204,777
1,462,534 1,674,755
263,457 203,407
486,081 473,500
28,806 38,115
79,564 81,111
9,155 7,360
2,505,040 2,743,776
15,008,084 15,600,506

The annexed notes from 1 to 24 form an integral part of these condensed interim consolidated financlal staterments.

Chief Executive Off;cer Director

m -

Chief Financial Officer
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CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE QUARTER AND HALF YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Half year ended June 30, Quarter ended June 30,
2019 I 2018 2019 [ 2018
Note e (Rupees in '000)-------------

Revenue 17 2,268,937 2,290,882 1,243,647 1,581,363
Direct costs excluding depreciation

and amortization (1,215,423) (1,314,301) (596,437) (807,928)
Operating costs (391,453) (381,948) (229,834) (195,036)
Other income - net 18 403,710 694,836 206,556 263,014
Profit before Interest, Taxation, 1,085,771 1,289,469 623,932 841,413

Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization (646,613) (519,901) (332,930) (260,441)
Finance cost (249,515) (114,827) (163,157) (64,267)
Profit before Taxation 169,643 654,741 127,845 516,705
Taxation 20,852 (17,727) (65,621) 5,738
Net Profit for the Period attributable to Parent

Company 190,495 637,014 72,224 522,443
Earnings per share - basic (Rupees)

attributable to Parent Company 0.11 0.04 0.09 0.19
Earnings per share - diluted (Rupees)

attributable to Parent Company 0.07 0.03 0.09 0.10

The annexed notes from 1 to 24 form an integral part of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE QUARTER AND HALF YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Half year ended June 30, Quarter ended June 30,
2019 || 2018 2019 || 2018
(Rupees in '000)

Net Profit for the Period 190,495 637,014 72,224 522,443

Other comprehensive income - net of tax:

Item that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss:

- Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (9,309 (1,924) (10,608) (9,569)

Other Comprehensive Loss - net of tax (9,309 (1,924) (10,608) (9,569)

Total Comprehensive Income for the period attributable to
Parent Company 181,186 635,090 61,616 512,874

The annexed notes from 1 to 24 form an integral part of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT CASH FLOWS

(UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

| Half Year Ended June 30, |
2019 2018
(Un-audited) (Un-audited)
Note  =r—ereeeems (Rupees in '000)--------------
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash used in operations 19 363,079 (150,432)
Decrease / (Increase) in non-current assets:
- Long term loans - 460
- Long term trade receivables (311,240) 15,266
- Long term deposits 5,580 (716)
(305,660) 15,010

Cash (used in) / generated from operations 57,419 (135,422)
Post employment benefits paid (546) (8,927)
Finance cost paid (43,246) (9,566)
Income tax paid (16,483) (20,913)
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (2,856) (174,828)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (19,021) (40,247)
Investment in subsidiary - (5,659)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,860 70,858
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (17,161) 24,952
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of term finance certificates (30,000) -
Repayment of long term financing (13,893) (63,257)
Sponsor's loan - 300,000
Short term borrowings - net 96,536 2,502
Repayment of lease liability (30,828) -
Net Cash Generated from Financing Activities 21,815 239,245
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,798 89,369
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 7,360 22,919
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Period 9,158 112,288

The annexed notes from 1 to 24 form an integral part of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONDENSED INTERIM
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2019

Note 1
Legal Status and Nature of Operations

The Group is structured as follows:
- Worldcall Telecom Limited is the Parent Company (refer to note 1.1)

- Route 1 Digital (Private) Limited (the subsidiary) was acquired during the year ended December 31, 2018 (refer to note
1.2). The subsidiary is wholly owned by the Parent with 100% shareholding of the Parent Company in the subsidiary.

The registered office of the Group is situated at Plot # 1566/124, Main Walton Road, Lahore Cantt.

1.1 Worldcall Telecom Limited (the Parent Company) is a public limited Company incorporated in Pakistan on March 15,
2001 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). Its shares are quoted on
Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Parent Company commenced its operations on December 01, 2004 and is engaged in
providing Wireless Local Loop ("WLL") and Long Distance & International ("LDI") services in Pakistan; re-broadcasting
international/national satellite/terrestrial wireless and cable television and radio signals; interactive communication and
to establish, maintain and operate the licensed telephony services. The Parent Company has been licensed by Pakistan
Telecommunication Authority ("PTA") and Pakistan Electronic Media Regulatory Authority ("PEMRA") for these purposes.
The Parent Company is domiciled in Pakistan and its registered office and principal place of business is situated at Plot
# 1566/124, Main Walton Road, Lahore Cantt.

Worldcall Services (Pvt.) Limited (the "Holding Company"), Holding Company of the Parent Company and incorporated
in Pakistan, owns 27.79% (December 31, 2018: 27.79%) ordinary shares of the Parent Company. Aggregate holding of
Worldcall Services (Private) Limited through other associates is 45.81% (December 31, 2018: 53.27%).

1.2 Route 1 Digital (Private) Limited (the subsidiary) is a private limited Company incorporated in Pakistan on December 21,
2016 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). The primary business is to carry
out the business of all transport services, sharing motor vehicle transportation with another or others, and consultancy
in the field of information technology, software development and all activities ancillary thereto. The subsidiary is
domiciled in Pakistan and its registered office is situated at 2nd Floor, 300 Y Block, Phase-lll, Defence Housing
Authority, Lahore Cantt. Its principal place of business is situated at 20, Tariq Block, New Garden Town, Lahore. The
Group acquired this subsidiary during the year for which control was obtained on April 20, 2018.

Note 2
Basis of Preparation

21 These condensed interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. The accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting comprise of:

International Accounting Standard (IAS') 34, ‘Interim Financial Reporting', issued by International Accounting
Standards Board (1ASB') as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of IAS 34, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2 These condensed interim consolidated financial statements are unaudited.

2.3 These condensed interim consolidated financial statements (un-audited) do not include all of the information required
for annual financial statements and should be read in conjunction with the annual consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2018. Selected explanatory notes are included to explain events and transactions that are
significant to understanding of the changes in the Group's financial statements since the last financial statements.
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24

25

2.6

2.6.1

26.1.1
26.1.2
26.1.3

26.1.4

2.6.1.5

2.6.2

These condensed interim consolidated financial statements (un-audited) should be read in conjunction with annual
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018. Comparative statement of financial
position is extracted from annual audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018
whereas comparative statement of profit or loss, comparative statement of comprehensive income, comparative
statement of changes in equity and comparative statement of cash flows are extracted from unaudited condensed
interim consolidated financial statements for the half year ended June 30, 2018.

These condensed interim (un-audited) consolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the
Group's functional and presentational currency. All the figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of
rupees, unless otherwise stated.

Going concern assumption

The Group has earned a profit after taxation of Rs. 190.495 million during the period ended June 30, 2019 (June 30,
2018: profit after taxation of Rs. 637.014 million) which includes the impact of write back of provisions and unclaimed
liabilities for Rs. 374.52 million (June 30, 2018: Rs. 559.43 million). As at June 30, 2019, the accumulated loss of the
Group stands at Rs. 13,062.71 million (December 31, 2018: Rs. 13,170.32 million) and its current liabilities exceed its
current assets by Rs. 5,506.64 million (December 31, 2018: Rs. 5,581.99 million). These conditions, along with the
factors discussed in note 14, indicate the existence of material uncertainties that cast significant doubt about the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and therefore, it may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.

The Group's management has carried out an assessment of going concern status of the Group and believes that
preparation of these financial statements on going concern assumption is appropriate. The management has placed
reliance on the following factors:

Net Liabilities Position - Risk Mitigation

As mentioned above, there is a net current liability position of approximately Rs. 5.507 billion as on the reporting date,
which has the following major components:

Description Note Rs in million
Short term Borrowings (Principal+Markup) 26.1.1 817
Pakistan Telecommunication Authority (PTA) 26.1.2 2,312
Claims of Parties Challenged 26.1.3 885
Continuing Business Partners 26.1.4 704
Provision for taxation 2615 349
5,067

The management believes that certain balances included in the above amounts do not represent immediately payable
liabilities as detailed below:

The Group has been successful in obtaining renewals of its short term financing facilities from all major banks except
two facilities and markup servicing is also being improved. Moreover, short term borrowings include funds obtained
from sponsors / related parties to the tune of Rs. 326.64 million.

Liabilities towards PTA stand at approximately Rs. 2.3 billion which are not immediately payable owing to non-fulfillment
of certain conditions relating to the demand of such amounts. These conditions relate to the industry circumstances and
Court Orders.

This amount represents the amounts owed to certain parties whose claims have been challenged by the Group in
various judicial forums for the breach and non-performance of their contractual obligations. Based on the merits of
Group’s position, the management believes that such amounts may not be immediately payable under the
circumstances.

This represents routine trade credits extended by regular parties and these balances are of revolving nature. Thus, no
immediate net cash outlay would be required.

The Group does not anticipate cash outlays on account of Provision for Taxation, since it has sufficient brought forward
losses.

Continued Parent Company Support

The Group’s majority shareholder, Worldcall Services (Private) Limited (WSL) has given assurance to provide continued
cash flow support to the Group through its letter to the Group’s Board of Directors.
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Note 3

Significant Accounting Policies

The Group's accounting and financial risk management policies and methods of computation adopted in the preparation of these
condensed interim (un-audited) consolidated financial statements are the same as those applied in the preparation of preceding annual
financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2018 except for the adoption of new and amended standards as set
out below:

3.1

Initial application of standards, amendments or interpretations to existing standards

There has been no financial effect of the change in accounting policy on the prior period financial statements except for
certain reclassifications in the corresponding period.

The following amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable to the Group's condensed interim
consolidated financial statements:

Standards, amendments and interpretations to approved accounting and reporting standards that are effective
in the current period

Certain standards, amendments and interpretations to approved accounting and reporting standards are effective for
accounting periods beginning on January 1, 2019, but are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on
the Group's condensed interim consolidated financial statements and are, therefore, not detailed in these condensed interim
consolidated financial statements.

The following standards, amendments and interpretations to approved accounting and reporting standards have been adopted
by the Group which are relevant for the Group. Any change in presentation or classification of items has been accounted for in
accordance with IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors'. However, no restatement has been
deemed necessary in this regard.

3.1.1.1 IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

This Standard had been notified by the SECP to be effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2018. This
Standard deals with revenue recognition and establishes principles for reporting useful information to users of the financial
statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s contracts with
customers. Revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of a good or service and thus has the ability to direct the
use and obtain the benefits from the good or service. The standard replaces IAS 18, ‘Revenue’, and IAS 11, ‘Construction
contracts), and related interpretations.

The Group has applied IFRS 15 using the modified retrospective approach for transition. This approach requires entities to
recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 15 as an adjustment to the opening balance of un-appropriated profit
in the period of initial application. Comparative prior year periods would not be adjusted. The application of IFRS 15 does not
have any impact on the revenue recognition policy of the Group and therefore, the cumulative effect of initially applying this
standard as an adjustment to the opening balance of un-appropriated profit in the period of initial application is nil.

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018) replaces IAS
18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts, and other related interpretations on revenue recognition. IFRS 15 introduces a
single five-step model for revenue recognition and establishes a comprehensive framework for recognition of revenue from
contracts with customers based on a core principle that an entity should recognize revenue representing the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. IFRS 15 requires entities to exercise judgment, taking into consideration all of the
relevant facts and circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also
specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract.

Set out below, are the amounts by which each financial statement line item is affected as at and for the period ended June 30,
2019 as a result of the adoption of IFRS 15. The adoption of IFRS 15 did not have a material impact on the financial
statements of the Group. The only change is the change in terminologies with no change in amounts to be recognized. The
first column shows amounts prepared under IFRS 15 and the second column shows what the amounts would have been had
IFRS 15 not been adopted:
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3.1.1.2

FRS15  PreviouslFRs  Inoreese
(Decrease)
—ememmenenene—-RUpEES iN thOUSANAS----mrmmsmmemenenena
LIABILITIES
Contract liabilities - trade and other payables 10,639 - 10,639
Advance from customers - trade and other payables - 10,639 (10,639)

The Group has not presented a third statement of financial position as at the beginning of the the preceding period as the
Group believes that the there is no effect of restatement and reclassifications.

IFRS 16 'Leases'

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019) during the period
that has replaced IAS 17 - Leases, IFRIC 4 - Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease, SIC-15 - Operating Leases
- Incentives and SIC-27 - Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS 16 aims to set
out the principles for recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. It introduces a single lessee
accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for virtually all of the leases. IFRS 16 includes an
optional exemptions for certain short-term leases and leases of low-value assets for lessees. A lessee is required to recognize
a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to
make the lease payments. Under the previous standard, IAS 17, lessees were required to make a distinction between a
finance lease (on balance sheet) and an operating lease (off balance sheet). IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements of IAS 17 'Leases'. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases differently. However, as the IASB has updated the guidance on
the definition of a lease as well as the guidance on the combination and separation of contracts, lessors will also be affected
by the new standard. The adoption of IFRS 16 has necessitated change in accounting policy for the Group.

The Group has applied IFRS 16 using the cumulative catch-up approach and therefore the comparative information presented
has not been restated and continues to be reported under IAS 17 and related interpretations.

On transition to IFRS 16, the Group has elected to use the following practical expedients under IFRS 16 to leases previously
classified as operating leases under IAS 17:

- Applied IFRS 16 only to contracts that were previously identified as leases. Contracts that were not identified as leases under
IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 were not reassessed for whether there is a lease;

- A single discount rate has been applied to portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

- Leases with a remaining term of twelve months or less from the date of application have been accounted for as short-term
leases (i.e. not recognized in the statement of financial position) even though the initial term of the leases from lease
commencement date may have been more than twelve months;

- Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

The Group, as a lessee, previously used to classify leases as operating or finance leases based on its assessment of whether
the lease transferred significantly all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset to the Group. The
Group used to recognize minimum lease payments in full as an expense. Now, under IFRS 16, the Group recognizes right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities for all leases, after taking into account the elections made for available practical expedients
described above.

Previously, the Group determined at contract inception whether an arrangement was or contained a lease under IFRIC 4
'Determining Whether an Arrangement contains a Lease'. The Group now assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease
based on the new definition of a lease. Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group depreciates right-of-use assets in depreciation and amortization and unwounds the discount on lease liability into
finance cost.
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3.1.1.3

On transition, lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at the Group's
incremental borrowing rate as at January 1, 2019, the date of initial application. Right-of-use assets were measured at an
amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments. There has been no
impact on the opening equity.

The Group has applied IAS 36 Impairment of Assets to ROU assets at the date of initial application and assessed that ROU
assets are not impaired as at that date.

On transition to IFRS 16, the Group has recognized an additional Rs. 254.34 million of right-of-use assets (adjusted by prepaid
lease payments of Rs. 3.49 million) and Rs. 250.85 million of lease liabilities in the statement of financial position. The Group
used its incremental borrowing rate at January 1, 2019 to discount the lease payments. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities on January 1, 2019 was 13.35%.

The reconciliation of aggregate lease liability recognized in the statement of financial position at January 1, 2019 with the
Group’s operating lease commitment as at December 31, 2018 is as follows:

Rs. in'000
Operating lease commitment as at December 31, 2018 452,216
Recognition exemption for short-term leases (12,204)
Effect of discounting those lease commitments at an annual rate of 13.35% (189,165)
Lease liabilities recognized at January 1, 2019 as a result of initial application of IFRS 16 250,847

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments'

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP') through SRO 1007(1)/2017 dated October 4, 2017 had notified
that IFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’ would be applicable for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2018, however,
subsequent to reporting date, SECP through SRO 229(1)/2019 dated February 14, 2019 has notified the deferment of this
standard to reporting period/year ending on or after June 30, 2019 (earlier application is permitted). Consequently, the Group
has adopted this standard in the preparation of these condensed interim consolidated financial statements for the six-month
period ended June 30, 2019.

The Group has adopted IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ during the period that has replaced IFRIC 9 - Reassessment of
Embedded Derivatives, IAS 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, IFRS 9 (2009), IFRS 9 (2010) and IFRS
9 (2013). IFRS 9 shall now govern the classification, recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of financial
instruments.

IFRS 9 has introduced new requirements governing the recognition and measurement of financial instruments and impairment
losses on financial assets. IFRS 9 also includes new guidelines on hedge accounting. The financial assets are now classified
on the basis of the business model in which they are held and their cash flow characteristics. Equity instruments currently
classified as held for trading financial assets may now be recognized at fair value through other comprehensive income. The
change in recognition of impairment of financial assets from the incurred loss model to the expected loss model will result in
earlier recognition of expected losses in the profit and loss account. The loss allowances to be recognized on receivables will
now be determined using the full lifetime expected loss model. The default rates will be based on historical and forward-
looking data. The requirements regarding financial liabilities remain mostly unchanged.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 prospectively, with an initial application date of January 1, 2019. The Group has not restated
the comparative information, which continues to be reported under IAS 39. Differences arising, if any, from the adoption of
IFRS 9 have been recognized directly in retained earnings and other components of the equity.

Effects of IFRS 9, Financial Instruments

The reclassification of financial instruments from IAS 39 to IFRS 9 categories depending on the applicable business model
and the associated contractual cash flows did not materially affect the condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

(a) Classification and measurement

Under IFRS 9, debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss, amortized cost, or fair value
through OCI. The classification is based on two criteria: the Group’s business model for managing the assets; and whether the
instruments’ contractual cash flows represent ‘solely payments of principal and interest’ on the principal amount outstanding.
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The assessment of the Group’s business model was made as of the date of initial application, January 1, 2019. The
assessment of whether contractual cash flows on debt instruments are solely comprised of principal and interest was made
based on the facts and circumstances as at the initial recognition of the assets.

The classification and measurement requirements of IFRS 9 did not have a significant impact to the Group. The Group
continued measuring at fair value all financial assets previously held at fair value under IAS 39. The following are the changes
in the classification of the Group’s financial assets:

- Financial assets classified as Loans and receivables as at December 31, 2018 are held to collect contractual cash flows
and give rise to cash flows representing solely payments of principal and interest. These are classified and measured as
debt instruments at amortized cost beginning January 1, 2019.

- Quoted debt investments classified as Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets as at December 31, 2018 are classified and
measured as debt instruments at fair value through OCI beginning January 1, 2019. The Group expects not only to hold
the assets to collect contractual cash flows, but also to sell a significant amount on a relatively frequent basis.

The Group has not designated any financial liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss. There are no changes in
classification and measurement for the Group’s financial liabilities.

In summary, upon the adoption of IFRS 9, the Group had the following required or elected reclassifications as at January 1, 2019:

[IAS 39 Category | | IFRS 9 Category |
Fair value .
Am(lJ:gt;gnder through profit or - Amortized cost Fair valg%tlhrough
loss
--------------------------- Rupees in thousands---------------------s-euemenen
Loans and receivables
Long term loans 2,758 - 2,758 -
Long term deposits 46,677 - 46,677 -
Long term trade receivables 54,578 - 54,578 -
Trade debts* 1,674,755 - 1,483,970 -
Short term deposits 458,565 - 458,565 -
Other receivables 81,111 - 81,111 -
Cash and bank balances 7,360 - 7,360 -
Available for sale
Listed equity investments 38,115 - 38,115

*The change in carrying amount is a result of additional impairment allowance. See the discussion on impairment below:

(b) Impairment

The adoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Group’s accounting for impairment losses for financial assets by replacing IAS
39's incurred loss approach with a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach. IFRS 9 requires the Group to recognize an
allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss and contract assets.

Upon adoption of IFRS 9 the Group recognized additional impairment on the Group’s Trade debts of Rs. 190.785 million which resulted
in a decrease in retained earnings of Rs. 190.785 as at January 1, 2019. Impairment losses do not reduce the carrying amount of debt
instruments at fair value through OClI in the statement of financial position, which remains at fair value.

Set out below is the reconciliation of the ending impairment allowances in accordance with IAS 39 to the opening loss allowances
determined in accordance with IFRS 9:

Allowance for

impairment ECL under IFRS 9

under IAS 39 as measi‘r:ment as at January 1,
at December 31, 2019
2018
“remmemeeeeeeeee=-RUPEES I (000----mwmrememeeeeeeeee
Loans and receivables under IAS 39 / Financial assets at amortized cost
under IFRS 9 2,064,433 190,785 2,255,218
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3.1.1.3 IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

This IFRIC clarifies how the recognition and measurement requirements of IAS 12 ‘Income taxes’, are applied
where there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. The IFRIC explains how to recognize and measure
deferred and current income tax assets and liabilities where there is uncertainty over a tax treatment. An
uncertain tax treatment is any tax treatment applied by an entity where there is uncertainty over whether that
treatment will be accepted by the tax authority. The IFRIC applies to all aspects of income tax accounting
where there is an uncertainty regarding the treatment of an item, including taxable profit or loss, the tax bases
of assets and liabilities, tax losses and credits and tax rates. There is no impact on these interim consolidated
financial statements for application of this IFRIC.

Note 4
Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

The preparation of condensed interim (un-audited) consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved
accounting and reporting standards requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates,
associated assumptions and judgments are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. In preparing these condensed interim (un-audited) consolidated financial statements, the significant
judgments made by the management in applying accounting policies and the key sources of estimation were the same
as those that were applied to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 except for impairment
testing of assets; taxation; provision for expected credit losses; identifying performance obligations in a bundled sale of
goods and installation services; determining the timing of performance obligation satisfaction; determining method to
estimate variable consideration; consideration of significant financing component in a contract; and estimation of stand-
alone selling prices.

Note 5
Authorized Share Capital
June 30, December 31, June 30, December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018
(Un-audited) (Audited) (Un-audited) (Audited)
No. of Shares -------—---(Rupees in '000)-----------—-
Ordinary share capital:
1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 15,000,000 15,000,000
Preference share capital:
500,000 500,000 Preference shares of USD 100 each 6,000,000 6,000,000
5.1 During the period, shareholders of the Group resolved in annual general meeting held on April 30, 2019 that

the authorized capital of the Group be increased from PKR 21 billion to PKR 29 billion divided into 2.9 billion
ordinary shares of PKR 10 which may be utilized to issue ordinary shares of PKR 10 each and / or preference
shares of PKR 10 each of the Group as the Board of Directors of the Group may decide from time to time in
accordance with the Companies Act, 2017. Regulatory requirements as to the alteration of Memorandum and
Articles of Association are in process.
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Note 6
Ordinary Share Capital
June 30, December 31, June 30, December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018
(Un-audited) (Audited) Note (Un-audited) (Audited)
No. of Shares =emmemee--(RUpEES iN '000)--------------
344,000,000 344,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 3,440,000 3,440,000
fully paid in cash
309,965,789 309,965,789 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 3,099,658 3,099,658
issued in accordance with the
scheme of merger
98,094,868 98,094,868 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 980,949 980,949
issued as fully paid bonus shares
108,510,856 108,510,856  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 1,085,109 1,085,109
issued against convertible loan
945,350,404 945,350,404 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 9,453,504 9,453,504
issued against convertible
preference shares
6.6 18,059,220 18,059,220
Less: Discount on issue of 6.7 (7,223,276) (7,223,276)
shares
1,805,921,917 1,805,921,917 10,835,944 10,835,944

6.1 During the period, Nil (December 31, 2018: 56,100) convertible preference shares and accumulated preference dividend
thereon amounting to Rs. Nil (December 31, 2018: Rs. 198.729 million) have been converted into ordinary shares in
accordance with the agreed terms and conditions detailed in Note 7.2. Legal formalities for allotment of 306,887,260
shares (December 31, 2018: 306,887,260) by SECP are under process.

6.2 The terms of agreement between the Group and certain lenders impose certain restrictions on distribution of dividends by
the Group.

6.3 Worldcall Services (Pvt.) Limited, the Holding Company, holds 501,862,290 shares (December 31, 2018: 501,862,290
shares) representing 27.79% (December 31, 2018: 27.79%) in the Group. Out of these shares, 175 million shares are
pledged to secure TFC liability which will be released with quarterly scheduled principal repayments proportionately
starting from June 2019 (refer to note 9).

6.4 Ferret Consulting F.Z.C., an associate of the Group, holds 324,444,643 shares (December 31, 2018: 324,444,643 shares)
representing 17.97% (December 31, 2018: 17.97%) in the Group.

6.5 AMB Management Consultants (Pvt.) Limited, an associate of the Group, holds 931,543 shares (December 31, 2018:
135,576,543 shares) representing 0.05% (December 31, 2018: 7.51%) in the Group.

June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
(Un-audited) (Audited)
-ememee—-(RUpees in '000)--------------

6.6 Reconciliation of outstanding ordinary share capital is as follows:

Opening balance 18,059,220 11,211,158

Add: Ordinary share capital issued against convertible preference share capital - 6,848,062

Closing balance 18,059,220 18,059,220
6.7 Reconciliation of discount on issue of shares is as follows:

Opening balance 7,223,276 1,260,612
Add: Discount on issuance of ordinary shares during the period / year - 5,962,664
Closing balance 7,223,276 7,223,276
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Note 7
Preference Share Capital
June 30, December 31, June 30, December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018
Note (Un-audited) (Audited) (Un-audited) (Audited)
-------- No. of Shares-------- -----—--—-(Rupees in '000)---
Opening balance 255,400 311,500 2,585,646 3,150,236
Less: Preference shares converted into
ordinary shares during the year 7.3 - (56,100) - (564,590)
255,400 255,400 2,585,646 2,585,646

7.1 These preference shares are US Dollars denominated, non-voting, cumulative and convertible preference shares (“CPS”, or
“preference shares”) having a face value of USD 100 each.

7.2 The conversion option was exercisable by the holder at any time after the 1st anniversary of the issue date but not later than the 5th
anniversary. On 5th anniversary, CPS had to be mandatorily converted into ordinary voting common shares. CPS were to be
converted at the conversion ratio defined in the agreement at 10% discount on share price after first anniversary and thereby
increased by 10% additional discount for each completed year of anniversary.

7.3 In accordance with the terms detailed in Note 7.2 above, certain preference shareholders have exercised conversion option. Thus,
their CPS and accrued preference dividend thereon have been converted into ordinary shares as reflected in Note 6.1 and Note
8.2. Out of these converted, 22,000 preference shares (December 31, 2018: 46,100) are yet to be cancelled by the Group in
SECP's records.

7.4  CPS holders are entitled to non-cash dividend which shall be calculated @ 5.9% per annum on each of the preference shares or
the dividend declared by the Group for Ordinary Shareholders, whichever is higher.

7.5  Certain preference shareholders have served conversion notices for conversion of 38,800 preference shares. The Group is yet to
issue ordinary shares against these CPS along with accumulated dividend thereon. Such conversion would result in issuance of
541,237,537 ordinary shares.

7.6 Worldcall Services (Pvt.) Limited, the Holding Company, holds 34,500 preference shares (December 31, 2018: 34,500 preference
shares) in the Group.

7.7 Ferret Consulting F.Z.C., an associate of the Group, holds 164,100 preference shares (December 31, 2018: 164,100 preference
shares) in the Group.

7.8 AMB Management Consultants (Pvt.) Limited, an associate of the Group, holds 4,300 preference shares (December 31, 2018:
4,300 preference shares) in the Group.

7.9 Mandatory date of conversion of CPS has expired during the last year and the Group has failed to redeem the un-converted
preference shares in a timely fashion as contemplated by its Articles of Association. Thus, the Group is in default of Regulation 12
of the Companies (Further Issue of Shares) Regulations 2018. According to these Regulations, a listed Company that fails to,
completely or partially, fulfill or comply with any of the relevant terms and conditions of preference shares is considered to be in an
event of default.

7.10 During the period, the preference shareholders in an Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on January 4, 2019 and ordinary
shareholders in annual general meeting held on April 30, 2019 have given their assent for the conversion of preference shares be
made at nominal value of PKR 10 each and for the amendments in the Memorandum and Articles of Association. Resultantly,
preference shares along with dividend accrued thereon shall be converted on any date from the mandatory conversion date, at par
value of PKR 10 each. However, the shares for which notices have been received before mandatory conversion date would be
converted on the terms prevalent on the date of notice.

Note 8
Dividend on Preference Shares June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
Note (Un-audited) (Audited)
emeemeee(RUpPEES iN '000)---remrme-mm
Dividends on preference shares 8.1 949,662 949,662

8.1 This represents accumulated dividend on preference shares which is not payable in cash rather it will be converted into ordinary
shares as and when the preference shares are converted into ordinary shares.

8.2 During the period, cumulative preference dividend amounting to Rs. Nil (December 31, 2018: Rs. 198.72 million) was converted
into ordinary shares as a result of conversion option exercised by certain preference shareholders in accordance with the terms
and conditions given in Note 7.2 above.
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Note 9
Term Finance Certificates June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
Note (Un-audited) (Audited)
-------------- (Rupees in '000)--------------
Opening balance 1,317,110 1,517,110
Less: Payments made during the period/year (30,000) (200,000)
1,287,110 1,317,110
Less: Current and overdue portion (150,000) (130,006)
1,137,110 1,187,104
Add: Deferred markup 9.1 435,012 396,659
1,672,122 1,583,763

Term finance certificates (TFCs) have a face value of Rs. 5,000 per certificate. These TFCs carry mark up at the rate
of six months average KIBOR plus 1.0% per annum (December 31, 2018: six month average KIBOR plus 1.6% per
annum), payable quarterly. The mark up rate charged during the year on the outstanding balance ranged from
11.80% to 12.10% (December 31, 2018: 8.03% to 8.21%) per annum.

The liability of these TFCs has been rescheduled in December 2012 and then on April 03, 2015. During last year,
third rescheduling of these TFCs has successfully been executed through signing of the Third Supplemental Trust
Deed between the Trustee and the Group.

In accordance with the 3rd Supplemental Trust Deed executed during last year, the outstanding principal is
repayable by way of quarterly staggered installments with downward revision in markup of 0.60% i.e. revised markup
of six months average KIBOR + 1%. The outstanding markup payable as at the date of restructuring and up to
December 20, 2018 is agreed to be deferred and shall be paid from March 20, 2021 in quarterly installments. 50% of
the markup accrued for the period between December 20, 2018 to December 20, 2020 shall be paid on regular
quarterly basis commencing from March 20, 2019 and the remaining 50% shall be deferred and paid from March 20,
2021. Markup deferred has been measured at present value. Under the revised term sheet, these TFCs are due to
mature on September 20, 2026.

The other main terms were included appointment of one representative as nominee director nominated by the
Trustee which has been appointed.

IGI Investment Bank Limited is the Trustee (herein referred to as the Trustee) under the Trust Deed. These TFCs are
secured against first pari passu charge over the Group's present and future fixed assets including equipment, plant
and machinery, fixtures excluding land and building with 25% margin in addition to all rights, benefits, claims and
interests procured by the Group under:

a) LDl and WLL license issued by PTA to the Group; and
b) Assigned frequency spectrum as per deed of assignment.

Further, 175 million sponsor's shares are pledged for investors which will be released with quarterly scheduled
principal repayments proportionately starting from June 2019.

9.1 Deferred markup

Deferred markup 9.1.1 623,261 588,776
Adjustment due to impact of IFRS 9 9.1.2 (188,249) (192,117)
435,012 396,659
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June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
(Un-audited) (Audited)

-------------- (Rupees in '000)--------------
9.1.1  Reconciliation of deferred markup is as follows:

Opening balance 588,776 -
Add: Markup deferred during the period / year 34,485 588,776
623,261 588,776
9.1.2 Reconciliation is as follows:
Opening balance 192,117 -
Add: Discounting impact of deferred markup 12,580 192,117
204,697 192,117
Less: Unwinding impact of discounted deferred markup (16,448) -
188,249 192,117
Note 10
Long Term Financing
June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
Note (Un-audited) (Audited)

-------------- (Rupees in '000)------------
From Banking Companies (secured)

Askari Bank Limited 10.1 - 13,893

Allied Bank Limited 10.2 97,401 -
97,401 13,893

10.1  Askari Bank Limited

Opening balance 48,627 76,414
Repayments / adjustments (13,893) (27,787)
34,734 48,627
Less: Current and overdue portion (34,734) (34,734)
- 13,893

This represents liability created by the bank due to encashment of performance guarantee issued in favor of
Universal Service Fund (USF). The tenure of the loan is 3 years and is repayable by April 30, 2020. It carries mark up
at 6 months KIBOR plus 2% per annum. The mark up charged during the period on the outstanding balance ranged
from 12.80% to 15.11% (December 31, 2018: 8.43% to 8.61%) per annum. The loan is secured through joint
collateral comprising first joint pari passu hypothecation charge of Rs. 1.26 billion over all present and future fixed
and current assets of the Group with 25% margin, first exclusive assignment of all present and future receivables of
LDI business arm of the Group in favor of lender with 25% margin and collection accounts with the Bank for routing
of LDl receivables.

10.2  Allied Bank Limited

Opening balance - 51,820
Transfer from running finance 123,000 -
Repayments / adjustments (2,303) (51,820)
120,697 -
Less: Current and overdue portion (27,697) -
93,000 -
Add: Deferred markup 6,971 -
Less: Discounting of deferred markup (2,570) -
4,401 -
97,401 -
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This represents balance transferred as a result of restructuring of short term running finance (RF) facility to Term
Loan Facility. Principle will be repaid in 48 stepped up monthly installments starting from January 2019 till December
2022. Markup will be accrued and will be serviced in 12 equal monthly installments, starting from January 01, 2023.
Effective markup rate applicable will be 3 Month KIBOR + 85 bps. The facility is secured against Joint pari passu
hypothecation charge on present and future current and fixed assets excluding land and building.

Note 11
Sponsor's Loan
June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
Note (Un-audited) (Audited)
-eenmee----(RUpees in '000)-------------
Sponsor's Loan - unsecured
- Interest bearing 114 493,500 417,300
- Non-interest bearing 11.2 902,416 838,631
1,395,916 1,255,931
11.1  Opening balance 417,300 331,500
Exchange loss 76,200 85,800
493,500 417,300

This represents USD denominated loan obtained from Worldcall Services (Private) Limited, the Holding
Company. It carries mark up at 12 months KIBOR plus 1%. The mark up rate charged during the period on
the outstanding balance is 12.34% (December 31, 2018: 7.50%) per annum.

11.2  This represents interest free loan obtained from Worldcall Services (Private) Limited, the Holding Company.
The amount is not payable over the period of next 3 years.

In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9, this loan has been carried at amortized cost and the relevant
difference is being charged to the statement of profit or loss. During the last year, imputed markup was

calculated at 12 months KIBOR plus 2% per annum and accounted for.

Opening balance

Transferred from current account

Amount of loan

Adjustment due to impact of IFRS 9:

Discounting

Unwinding of discount

1,221,337 368,500
- 852,837
1,221,337 1,221,337
(382,706) (406,813)
63,785 24,107
(318,921) (382,706)
902,416 838,631
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Note 12
Lease Liabilities June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
Note  (Un-audited) (Audited)
w-eesenemeeo--(RUpEES i '000)-----------
Lease liabilities 121 196,024

12,1 Opening balance -
Add: Adoption effect of IFRS 16 Leases 250,847

Add: Accrued lease rentals as at December 31, 2018 7,848
Add: Additions during the year 10,506
Add: Interest expense 15,924
Less: Lease payments (30,827)
Gross liability 254,298
Less: current portion (58,274)
Closing balance 196,024 -

122 Summary of amounts relating to leases charged in different line items of the financial statements is as follows:

2019 2018
Included in Note (Rs. in '000)
Interest expense on lease liabilities Finance cost 15,924
Amortization charge for ROU assets Depreciation and amortization 23,255
Carrying amount of ROU assets Property, plant and equipment 15.2 1,243,337
Expense relating to short-term leases Direct costs 696
Expense relating to short-term leases Operating costs 11,509
Repayment of lease liability Financing Activities 30,828
12.3  Maturity analysis of contractually undiscounted cash flows
- Between "
At June 30, 2019 (Un-audited) Within o to Five  LAte" than Five
One Year Years
Years
Lease liabilities 58,274 242,376 198,240

12.4  Nature of leasing activities

The Group's leases comprise cables and certain premises for installation of equipment, use as warehouse, guest house and
office operations. Periodic rentals are usually fixed over the lease term. However, in some contracts, it is customary for lease
contracts to provide escalation in lease payments after specified period of time. These neither contain any variable lease
payments nor any lease incentives. The Group is not committed to any leases not yet commenced at the reporting date.

Lease terms, and the remaining lease terms at the date of initial application, vary. Remaining lease term of existing lease
contracts for which lease liability is booked ranges from 2 to 14 years.
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Note 13
Short Term Borrowings
June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
Note (Un-audited) (Audited)

Banking companies (secured - interest bearing):

- Running finances 13.1 442,212 562,458

Related parties (unsecured - interest free):

- Ferret Consulting F.2.C. 13.2 246,750 139,100

- Worldcall Services (Private) Limited 13.3 79,893 -
768,855 701,558

13.1  These represent short term running finance facilities available from commercial banks under mark up

13.2

13.3

Note 14

arrangements. One of the running finance facility was transferred to long term financing during the year as a
result of restructuring of short term running finance (RF) facility to Term Loan Facility (note 10.2).

This represents USD denominated interest free amount of USD 1.5 million received from M/s Ferret
Consulting - FZ.C to meet the working capital requirements. An amount of USD 0.5 million was received
during the period. The amount is repayable on demand.

This represents interest free amount received from M/s Worldcall Services (Private) Limited to meet the
working capital requirements. The amount is repayable on demand. Reconciliation is as follows:

Opening balance - .

Add: Amount paid by WSL on behalf of the Group 52,893 -
Add: Receipts during the period / year 27,000 -
79,893 -

Contingencies and Commitments

There is no significant change in the status of contingencies from the preceding annual financial statements of the
Group for the year ended December 31, 2018, except for the followings:

1441

14.2

As disclosed in note 21.4.3 of the annual consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2018, one of the Group's supplier and its allied international identities had filed civil suit before
Islamabad Civil Court for recovery of USD 12.3 million and Rs. 68 million along with damages of USD 20
million. As per recent progress of the case, the honorable court, on application of the Group, has dismissed
this petition on July 10, 2019 for its presentation before proper forum.

During the period, the Group received a show cause notice from Punjab Revenue Authority (PRA) on
account of non-deduction and deposit of withholding sales tax as per the provisions of the Punjab Sales Tax
on Services (Withholding) Rules, 2015 amounting to Rs. 49.09 million on services rendered during January
2017 to December 2017. The Group filed a writ petition before Honorable Lahore High Court on March 7,
2019 against initiation of such proceedings by the Punjab Revenue Authority pleading to stop such frivolous
proceedings. The Honorable Court has allowed PRA to continue proceedings under the impugned show
cause notice but at the same time it was restrained from passing a final order. The writ petition is pending
adjudication. The management is hopeful that its viewpoint shall be upheld; thus no provision has been
incorporated in these financial statements.
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14.3 During the period, the Group received a notice from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) alleging charge of
super tax under section 4B of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 amounting to Rs. 43.82 million for the tax
year 2018. The Group filed a writ petition before Honorable Lahore High Court on May 18, 2019 impugning
vires of section 4B in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Honorable Court has restrained FBR from
adopting coercive measures. The writ petition is pending adjudication. The management is hopeful that its
viewpoint shall be upheld; thus no provision has been incorporated in these financial statements.

Guarantees and Letter of Credits

June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
(Un-audited) (Audited)

Outstanding guarantees and letter of credits 329,638 349,100
Commitments
Commitments in respect of capital expenditure 137,456 138,330
Note 15
Property, Plant and Equipment
June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
Note (Un-audited) (Audited)
-------------- (Rupees in '000)--------------

Operating fixed assets 151 7,023,485 7,221,715
Right-of-use assets 15.2 1,243,337 1,001,746
Capital work-in-progress 58,352 56,401

8,325,174 8,279,862

15.1  Operating fixed assets

Opening book value 7,221,715 6,480,167
Additions during the period / year 15.1.1 255,828 150,558
Transfers on acquisition of subsidiary (book value) 15.1.2 - 4,199
Revaluation surplus during the period / year - 1,340,623

7,477,543 7,975,547
Disposals / settlement (at book value) for the period / year 15.1.3 (25,758) (70,276)
Depreciation charged during the period / year (428,300) (683,556)
Closing book value 7,023,485 7,221,715

15.1.1 Detail of additions
Leasehold improvements 3,347 5,500
Plant and equipment 250,875 133,306
Office equipment 233 5,508
Furniture and fixtures 890 909
Computers 483 5,229
Laboratory and other equipment - 106
255,828 150,558
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June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
(Un-audited) (Audited)

15.1.2 Transfers on acquisition of subsidiary (book value)

Leasehold improvements - 2,597
Office Equipment - 796
Computers - 130
Furniture and fixtures - 676

4,199

15.1.3 Book values of assets disposed off

Freehold Land - 19,800
Leasehold improvements - -
Plant and equipment 25,758 49,725
Office Equipment - 165
Computers - 58
Furniture and fixtures
Vehicles - 528
25,758 70,276

15.2 Right-of-use assets

Opening balance 1,001,746 333,853
Add: Adoption effect of IFRS 16 Leases 250,847 -
Add: Prepaid lease rentals as at December 31, 2018 3,493 -
Add: Additions during the period / year 10,506 720,000
Less: Amortization charge for the period / year (23,255) (52,107)
Closing balance 1,243,337 1,001,746
Lease Term (Years) 2t0 14 -

15.2.1  Depreciation on right-of-use assets has been allocated to depreciation and amortization on face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

15.2.2  There are no variable lease payments in the lease contracts. There were no leases with residual value
guarantees or leases not yet commenced to which the Group is committed.
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Note 16
Trade Debts
June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
Note (Un-audited) (Audited)

Considered good - unsecured 1,462,534 1,674,755
Considered doubtful - unsecured 2,292,437 2,064,433
3,754,971 3,739,188
Less: Impairment allowance 16.1 (2,292,437) (2,064,433)
1,462,534 1,674,755

16.1  Impairment allowance

Opening balance 2,064,433 2,033,988
Add: Effect of adoption of IFRS 9 190,785 -
Add: Provision for expected credit losses 37,219 30,445
2,292,437 2,064,433
Less: Write offs B R
Closing balance 2,292,437 2,064,433
Note 17
Revenue Half Year Ended June 30,
2019 2018
Note (Un-audited) (Un-audited)

Disaggregated revenue information:

Telecom 992,814 1,046,010
Broadband 171 1,301,754 1,275,267
Other 13,520 31,826

2,308,088 2,353,103
Less: Sales tax (27,417) (48,948)
Less: Discount and commission (11,734) (13,273)

2,268,937 2,290,882

17.1 This includes revenue amounting to Rs. 507.545 million (2018: Rs. 720 million) in respect of agreement
for Indefeasible Right of Use of metro fiber with a customer. The agreement grants both parties to the
agreement IRU for 20 years.

Note 18
Other Income - Net

This includes the impact of write back of provisions and unclaimed liabilities amounting to Rs. 374.52 million
(June 30, 2018: Rs. 559.43 million).
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Note 19
Cash Generated from Operations Half Year Ended June 30,
2019 2018
(Un-audited) (Un-audited)
-------------- (Rupees in '000)--------------
Profit before taxation 169,643 654,741
Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items:
- Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 428,300 323,917
- Amortization on intangible assets 195,057 195,987
- Amortization of long term trade receivable (10,456) (9,540)
- Provision for expected credit losses 37,219 93
- Amortization of right of use assets 28,255 -
- Revenue from IRU agreement - (720,000)
- Disposal of fiber under IRU arrangement 24,543 -
- Reversal of Provision for Loan and Advances (1,189) -
- Liabilities no longer payable written back (374,521) (5659,427)
- Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (645) (1,412)
- Discounting of long term deposit - (16,220)
- Unwinding of discounted long term deposit 11,419 -
- Unwinding of discounted deferred markup on TFCs 16,448 -
- Unwinding of discounted sponsor's loan 63,785 12,054
- Post employment benefits 32,279 28,977
- Exchange loss on foreign currency loan 114,765 33,300
- Discounting of deferred markup on TFCs (12,580) (156,915)
- Discounting of sponsors' loan - (34,907)
- Discounting of deferred markup on long term financing (2,570) -
- Exchange (gain) / loss on foreign currency payables - net (95,596) 88,106
- Imputed interest on lease liability 15,925 -
- Finance cost 141,925 102,771
607,363 (713,216)
Operating income / (loss) before working capital changes 777,006 (58,475)

(Increase) / decrease in current assets

- Stores and spares 8,978 (1,719)

- Stock-in-trade - 9,385

- Trade debts (563,308) (99,364)

- Loans and advances (58,771) (42,989)

- Deposits and prepayments (18,054) (28,116)

- Other receivables 1,547 (10,968)
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

- Unearned revenue 18,440 (25,605)

- Trade and other payables 197,241 107,419

(413,927) (91,957)

Cash generated from / (used in) operations 363,079 (150,432)
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Note 20
Transaction with Related Parties

Related parties comprise the Holding Company, subsidiary, associated companies / undertakings, directors of the Group and their close relatives and
key management personnel of the Group. The Group in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Significant
transactions and balances with related parties are as follows:

Half Year Ended June 30,

2019 2018
(Un-audited) (Un-audited)
Transactions during the year with local companies (Rupees in '000)
Related party Relationship Nature of transaction
Worldcall Services Short term borrowings received during the period 27,000 54,400
(Private) Limited Amount paid by WSL on behalf of the Group 52,893 -
Holding Funds repaid by the Group during the year - 32,652
Company Sponsor's loan received during the period - 300,000
Markup adjusted during the period 107,923 -
Markup accrued during the period 31,603 18,229
Worldcall Business Solutions Expenses borne on behalf of associate 10,038 -
(Private) Limited Associate
Worldcall Cable (Private) Expenses borne on behalf of associate 600 -
Limited Associate
Ride Hail (Private) Limited Expenses borne on behalf of associate 14 -
Key management personnel Salaries and employees benefits 63,972 31,348
Transactions during the year with foreign companies
Related party Relationship Nature of transaction
Ferret Consulting - FZ.C Dividend on CPS - 178,073
Short term borrowings obtained during the period 69,085 -

Ferret Consulting, F.Z.C is incorporated in United Arab Emirates having its registered address at SM-Office, E1- 26, A032 , Ajman, United Arab
Emirates. Basis for association of the Group with Ferret is common directorship. Mr. Babar Ali Syed is the Managing Director of Ferret Consulting.
Ferret Consulting is actively operative.

All transactions with related parties have been carried out on mutually agreed terms and conditions.

June 30, December 31,
2019 2018
(Un-audited) (Audited)
Outstanding Balance as at the period/year end (Rupees in '000)
Worldcall Services Sponsor's loan - interest bearing 493,500 417,300
(Private) Limited Sponsor's loan - non interest bearing 902,416 838,631
Dividend on CPS 130,868 130,868
Accrued markup 5,916 75,913
Short term borrowings - interest free 79,893 -
Ferret Consulting - FZ.C Dividend on CPS 606,303 606,303
Short term borrowings - interest free 246,750 139,100
AMB Management Consultants
(Pvt.) Limited Dividend on CPS 16,311 16,311
Worldcall Business Solutions
(Private) Limited Other receivables 37,249 27,211
Ride Hail (Private) Limited Other receivables 14 -
Worldcall Cable (Private) Limited ~ Other receivables 1,840 1,240
Key management Payable against expenses, salaries and other employee benefits 99,801 89,805
personnel Long term loans - 269
Advance against expenses 15,030 12,455

These are in normal course of business.
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Note 21
Financial Risk Management

21.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk.

The condensed interim consolidated financial statements (un-audited) do not include all financial risk management information and
disclosures required in the annual consolidated financial statements, and should be read in conjunction with the Group’s annual financial
statements as at December 31, 2018.

There have been no changes in any risk management policies since the year end.
21.2 Fair value estimation

21.2.1 Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date. Set out below, is a comparison of the carrying amounts
and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities as at the reporting date:

June 30, 2019 December 31,2018
Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
‘Rs. in '000.

Financial Assets:
Long term trade receivable 360,882 772,004 54,578 372,186
Financial Liabilities:
Term finance certificates 1,722,122 1,910,371 1,713,769 1,905,886
Long term financing 159,832 162,402 48,627 48,627
Sponsors' loan 1,395,916 1,714,837 1,255,931 1,638,637

3,277,870 3,787,610 3,018,327 3,593,150

Carrying amounts of all other financial assets and financial liabilities approximate to their fair values. During the period, there were no significant
changes in the business or economic circumstances that affect the fair value of these assets and liabilities.

21.2.2 The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows:
Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).
Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset o liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices) (level 2).
Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at June 30, 2019:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rupees in '000

Assets
Short-term investments 28,806 - - 28,806

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at December 31, 2018:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rupees in '000

Assets
Short-term investments 38,115 - - 38,115

During the period, there were no significant changes in the business or economic circumstances that affect the fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities. Furthermore, there were no reclassifications of financial assets except those specified in Note 3.1.1.3 due to adoption
of IFRS 9 and there were no changes in valuation techniques during the period.
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Note 22
Segment Information

As per IFRS 8, "Operating Segments', operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting used by the
chief operating decision maker. The Group does not have any reportable segments. Segment reporting is based on the operating
(business) segments of the Group. An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other
components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) to assess
segment’s performance, and for which discrete financial information is available. Segment results that are reported to the CODM include
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

The internal reporting provided to the CODM for the Group's assets, liabilities and performance is prepared on a consistent basis with the
measurement and recognition principles of approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

The Group is domiciled in Pakistan. All of the Group's assets are located in Pakistan as at the reporting date.

Note 23
Date of Authorization for Issue

These condensed interim consolidated financial statements (un-audited) were approved and authorized for issue on
31 August 2019 by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company.

Note 24
Corresponding Figures

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged / reclassified, wherever necessary, to reflect more appropriate presentation of events and
transactions for the purpose of comparison. Following re-arrangements / reclassifications have been made in these financial statements:

Nature Reason From To Amount
(Rupees in '000)

Leased asset Required by IFRS 16 Operating fixed assets Right-of-use assets 1,001,746
Advance received Required by IFRS 15 Advance from Contract liabilities - 10,639
customers - trade and trade and other payables
other payables

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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